4.1

4.2

North Coast Unified

Air Quality Management District
707 L Street, Eureka, CA 95501
(707) 443-3093
www.ncuagmd.org

Meeting of the
North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District
Governing Board of Directors

Thursday, May 18, 2023 at 10:00 a.m.,
NCUAQMD District Office
707 L Street, Eureka, CA 95501

AGENDA
10:00 A.M. Call to Order Board Chair
Roll Call Clerk
Changes or Deletions to Agenda Board Chair
CONSENT AGENDA
Consider Approving the Consent Agenda, Items for Board Chair

action, 4.1 through 4.2: The Board may approve the
Consent Agenda by single motion in whole or in part with
or without further discussion.

Action Requested: Approve Consent Agenda Items 4.1
through 4.2.

By Consent, Approve Minutes of April 20, 2023 Board
Meeting

By Consent, Accept and File District Activity Report

1 of 67



REGULAR AGENDA

5. Public Comment Period (pursuant to Government Code Board Chair
section 54954.3(a))

6. Revise Previous Increase For District X-Factor by APCO
Change in Consumer Price Index
Action Requested: Approve Resolution 2023-3: Rescind
Resolution 2023-1, and Increase District X-Factor By
Annual Average Percentage Change In Consumer Price
Index (CPI) from the Previous Year

7. Public Hearing: Proposed FY 2023-24 District Budget APCO
Action Requested: Close Public Hearing and Adopt the
Proposed FY 2023-24 District Budget by Roll-Call Vote
8. Closed Session: Conference for Labor Negotiations Board Chair
a. Personnel Performance Evaluation, APCO - Pursuant
to Gov’t. Code sec. 54957, and
b. Labor Negotiations, Unrepresented Employee, APCO -
Pursuant to Gov’t Code sec. 54957.6
9. APCO Report APCO
10. Board Member Reports Board Chair
Board Chair
11. Adjournment

The meeting rooms are ADA accessible. Accommodations and access to NCUAQMD meetings for
people with special needs must be requested of the Clerk in advance of the meeting.

2 of 67



Agenda ltem: 1
Call to Order



Agenda ltem: 2
Roll Call



Agenda ltem: 3

Changes & Deletions
to the Agenda



Agenda ltem: 4
Consent Agenda



Agenda ltem: 4.1



North Coast Unified

Air Quality Management District
707 L Street, Eureka, CA 95501
(707) 443-3093
www.ncuagmd.org

Minutes of the Special Meeting of the North Coast
Unified Air Quality Management District Governing

Board of Directors Meeting of
April 20, 2023

The meeting was called to order by Chair Chris Howard at 10:01 AM at the NCUAQMD District
Office: 707 L Street, Eureka, CA.

The meeting location was made available to the public.

MEMBERS PRESENT:

Rex Bohn Humboldt County Supervisor
Chris Howard Del Norte County Supervisor
Alexandra Stillman City of Arcata Councilmember
Mike Wilson Humboldt County Supervisor
MEMBERS ABSENT:

Dan Frasier Trinity County Supervisor

STAFF PRESENT:

Jason Davis Deputy APCO

Winslow Condon Compliance & Enforcement Manager
Penny Costa Financial & Admin Services Manager
Erin Squire Clerk of the Board

OTHERS PRESENT:

Nancy Diamond District Counsel

Ira Summer Govlinvest Presenter

Agenda Item 1: Call to Order
Agenda Item 2: Roll Call
Agenda Item 3: Changes or Deletions to the Agenda

Staff requested Agenda ltem 10 be pulled from the Agenda and moved to the following
meeting.

8 of 67



Agenda Item 4: Consider Approving the Consent Agenda
4.1: Approve Minutes of the March 16, 2023, Board Meeting

4.2: By Consent, Accept and File District Activity Report

A motion offered by Supervisor Wilson, duly seconded by Councilmember Stillman, to Adopt
Consent Agenda Items 4.1-4.2 is hereby APPROVED by the North Coast Unified Air Quality
Management District Board of Directors on this 20" day of April 2023, by the following votes:

UNANMIOUS PASS by the following vote:

Ayes: Supervisor Bohn, Supervisor Howard, Councilmember Stillman,
and Supervisor Wilson (4)

Nays: None (0)

Abstain: None (0)

Absent: Supervisor Frasier (1)

There was no public comment.
Agenda Item 5: Public Comment
There was no public comment.

Agenda Item 6: District Pension & Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Liability Funding
Policies

Ira Summers from Govlnvest presented the Board with the draft funding policies for the District
Pension and Other Post Employment Liability Funding. The presentation is attached.

Board members discussed options and shared thoughts on the policies presented.

The Board requested further discussion and action for Agenda Item 6 be continued after Agenda
Iltem 7, Reserve Fund Status, and Agenda ltem 8, Public Hearing: Proposed FY 2023-24 District
Budget.

There was no public comment.

Agenda Item 7: Reserve Fund Status

Staff provided an update on the Reserve Fund status including encumbered and unencumbered
funding and where the funds originate from.

Board Member discussion ensued. Supervisor Wilson noted that it may be time to look at whether
or not the reserve fund thresholds should be increased from the amounts set in 2015 and if our
Operating Budget has increased from 2015 levels.

There was no public comment.

9 of 67



Agenda Item 8: Public Hearing: Proposed FY 2023-24 District Budget
The Public Hearing was Opened by Board Chair Howard at 10:55 AM.

The Deputy APCO introduced the Proposed 2023-24 FY Operating Budget with a PowerPoint
presentation. The presentation was not included in the published board packet and is attached.

Supervisor Bohn requested more information to better understand District staff responsibilities
due to changes in source types and programs worked on. Supervisor Wilson requested the District
look at solar options and transitioning our vehicles to electric technology. The Board requested
Staff to bring back more information and analysis.

Board members discussed the possible need for an increase to the X-factor beyond the CPI
increases that have been the only fee increases to take place for the past 10 years.

The Public Hearing was Continued to the next Regular Board meeting on May 18, 2023.
There was no public comment.

Agenda Item 6: District Pension & Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Liability Funding
Policies Continued

The Board continued discussion about the draft funding policies and options.

The Board expressed interest in having presentations from 115 Trust options, including but not
limited to, PARS.

A motion offered by Supervisor Bohn, duly seconded by Supervisor Wilson, Approve District
Pension & OPEB Liability Funding Policies is hereby APPROVED by the North Coast Unified Air
Quality Management District Board of Directors on this 20t day of April 2023, by the following
votes:

UNANIMOUS PASS by the following Roll Call vote:

Supervisor Bohn Aye
Supervisor Frasier Absent
Supervisor Howard Aye
Councilmember Stillman Aye
Supervisor Wilson Aye

There was no public comment.

Agenda Item 9: Resolution of Appreciation for John Corbett

A motion offered by Supervisor Bohn, duly seconded by Councilmember Stillman to, Approve
Resolution 2023-2 is hereby APPROVED by the North Coast Unified Air Quality Management
District Board of Directors on this 20™" day of April 2023, by the following votes:

10 of 67



UNANMIOUS PASS by the following Consensus vote:

Ayes: Supervisor Bohn, Supervisor Howard, Councilmember Stillman,
and Supervisor Wilson (4)

Nays: None (0)

Abstain: None (0)

Absent: Supervisor Frasier (1)

There was no public comment.
Agenda Item 11: APCO Report

Staff updated the Board on amendments to AB993 (Connolly) regarding biomass energy and
updates to the new CALFIRE burn permits.

There was no public comment.
Agenda Item 12: Board Member Reports

Councilmember Stillman requested information about how a member of the public may apply for a
position on our hearing board.

Supervisor Wilson requested the District continue to track and follow the Offshore Wind Project
and impacts to the million ton exemption currently in place at our port. He also suggested working
on planning for once the threshold is exceeded.

There was no public comment.

Councilmember Stillman exited the meeting at 11:39 AM

Agenda Item 11: Adjournment

The Governing Board Meeting was adjourned at 11:41 AM.

Clerk of the Board Certification:

| hereby certify the foregoing to be a full, true, and correct original
record of the above-entitled meeting of the North Coast Unified
Air Quality Management District Board of Directors held at the
above date and time.

DozuBkned by:

Enin e 5/12/2023 | 4:09 PM PDT

DAL 12d 4

ERIN SQUIRE Date
Clerk of the Board

The meeting rooms are ADA accessible. Accommodations and access to NCUAQMD
meetings for people with special needs must be requested of the Clerk in advance of the
meeting.

11 of 67



gcoz/oe/y

153AUIA0D) “

“2U] 1SIAUINOD £20C O

SUO0I139§ @94yl

1SSAUAOD “ “2U1 35IAUINOD €20 O

‘papuny aq [|IMm g3d0 PUe uoisudd moy d1jgnd ay} pue sasho|dwa SMOYS «
pue ‘sappuage Suijel puog saINssedy .

‘sao130e4d Juswadeuew |epueuly Juapnid sajessuowa( o

‘suois|aap 398pnq [enuue Supjew Ul 3dueping saPINOId «

{s92130e4d 959y JUSWNI0P 0} pue WY} puny 03 sa13a3ells dojanap
0} jueyiodwl SI ) 9J0jaJ9y) Juswadeuew wial-8uo| alinbai sg3dO pue suoisudd «

‘uonuane s1endosdde pue seinSau 3noym sa1duaSe 03 1ea4Y}
|EIDUBULY SNOLISS B W023¢ UBD pue aAlsuadxa aie suonediiqo g3d0 pue uoisuad «

juelioduw| sadijod Suipun4 ase Aymm

U] 1SBAUINOD £20C O

1SSAUAOD “ 21 359AUINOD €20 O

- €20T ‘0 |udy

¥ L3S JuswWaSeue | A)jenD 1y paljiun 1se0d YHOoN

S3121jod Suipun4
8340 3 uoisuad

12 of 67



gcoz/oe/y

EWMCSMJU ’ “2U] ISIAUINOD €20 @

siaquiaw ueld
93 01 papinoud s3yauaq Jo 1502 wial-8uo| ayl pun{ — |eod Suipund .

SYy3d|ed ul aedpiued 01 91qidi9
2Je 0143510 Y3 JO saaA0|dwa swil-}ed uleliad pue awi-[|N4 ||V «

SY3d|eD YSnoayi suyauaq Juswalizad sapinoid 1013sIq «

uoisuad — punoadydeg

oo

U] 1SBAUINOD €20 @

EWMCSMJU ’ “2U] ISIAUINOD €20 @

papuny aq ||Im sHauaq moy 21ignd ay3 pue saaAo|dwa smoys «
pue ‘sa1puade Suljes puoq sansseay e

‘sao130e4d Juswaeuew |ejoueUly JUIPNId saleIIsUOWA( «
‘suois12ap 193png |enuue Supjew Ul dueping saPIN0I( e

‘suoIINQIU0D
|ENUUE S} BUIWISISP 03 3SN [|IM 1DLISIJ Yl POYISW SIUSWNIOQ »

asoding

oo

U] 1SBAUINOD €20 @

13 of 67



“.mm..«ﬁ.:wmm.u ’ “2U] ISIAUINOD €20 @

uoIINQLIIUO) PaUIWIR1a( Ajlelden1dy ay3 01 [enba sY3d|ed
01 UOIINQLIZUOD B 3YBW ||IM 1D143SIJ Y1 ‘WnWiuIW e Je 4eah yoes «

uoNqLIIU0) paulwialaq Ajjeeny

o _>W0 ’ U1 3SIAUINOD €207 O

"ISNJL GTT UOI3S B 0} 4O ‘SY3d|ed
03 Aj30au1p oq Aew suoiinquiauod asay ] ‘uoisuad ay1 jo Suipuny
9y3 anoadwil 03 ‘91q1ssod Uaym ‘suoiingliuod |euoilppe ae|A .

‘sasodind Suipuny Joy
pleog Sy3d|ed ay3 Aq pardope a1ed 3unodsip ay3 Suisn sajyjigel| pung .
‘[|oJAed jo ju242d e Se ‘sajed uoIINQLIIUOD BZI|IGeIS o

'9€0¢ Aq Avjiger [elien1dy a3 Jo Sulpuny
1ua219d %56 pue ‘2e0 Aq AlljigerT |elien1oy syl Jo Sulpuny %06 UIENY «

s|eoo

“.mm..«ﬁ.:wmm.u ’ “2U] ISIAUINOD €20 @

gcoz/oe/y

o _>W0 ’ U1 3SIAUINOD €207 O

siaqwaw ueld
9y3 03 papinold s11jauaq 4O 150 WIa1-3uo| 8yl pund — [eod Suipund «

S}1J2UQ 353U} dAI9I3J 0] 3033 01 3|qISI|d aJe ISIg
3y} wody A[30341p 341334 OYM 12143SIQ DY} 4O SaA0 AW dWN-||NY IV «

Y1/eaH SY3died ysnouya syyauaq yieay aaJnad sapiroid 1013siq .

9340 - punoid)deg

14 of 67



,.‘_.,w:.._,;mwo‘ P WOD 0T O

pieog 40 Uo1RISIA IV

Isnij] ojuj suoingiijuo)
— 1SNJL UOISUD] STT UOIIAS

..‘nw,...:x&‘ P FIANND CUR O

‘AlljIger] uoisuad 2anpau 03 paljdde aq pjnom spuny
959Y1 pue ‘pund |eJauan ay) uey ajes Jays3iy e je 1sa1aiul Junesausd
J0 [e08 8yl Y1IM pa1saAul 3¢ PINOM 1SnJL STT 9y ul Asuow ay] «
‘s1yauaq
uolsuad punj 03 3sniL STT UOIII3S B YSI|qeISd P|NOM 3213SIQ YL «

ISNIL STT UoRI3s

'SuoIINQUIU0D
[euonippe ay3 Aq umop pied aq ||im Jey) saseq uoieziowe
9y} pue pied aq |IM SUOIINGLIIUOI [BUOINPPE 3S3Y] YIIym

03 ue|d ay3 Aj12ads ||1m SY3d|ED O} pew suoiNGLIUOD [euoilippe Auy «

JSNJL UOISUR STT UONIAS €
0} 10 SY3d[eD) 03 A|30341p apew aq Aew SUOIINGLIIUOI [BUOIHPPE 3S3Y ] «
*8ulpuny uoIsUa4 pJemo} apew
3q 03 SUOIINGIIIUOI [BUOIIPPE SZIIOYINE [|IM paeOg Y3 ‘Aj[BIIPOLId «

SUOIINGIIUO) [BUOIIPPY d1POLIAd

>0.00 S O €20 O

€coz/ot/y

T EIANND EUR O

Jeak yoea junowe
SY¥3d[eD 01 ayew ued JB||Op € SE pled - IS ||0sAed jo uadsad e se pjed
Ap wawhed wnwiuw 15ed piemo) uawheqd - B0IAJIS JUILIND 104 350D

FeEe-

uolINqIIUO0) paulwialaq Ajjereniy

15 of 67



gcoz/oe/y

“,mmmoﬂzu‘m.u ’ “2U] ISIAUINOD €20 @

u,‘mmwc_:\ﬂ.w.o ’ U1 3SIAUINOD €207 O

sieah anly Asans 9ouo ueyy Ajpusnbauy sso| ON

p4e0g 1913SIQ JO UORRIISIA IV «

Adijod mainay

“,mmmoﬂzu‘m.u ’ “2U] ISIAUINOD €20 @

110day |eldueuUl4 dAISUBYR4dWO) |ENUUY

Ad1j0d Suipund .
:9USgIM UQ »
suolinquiauod uoisuad sisi| 398png SunesadQ |enuuy
pJeogq 10143s1Q 03 S10day uollen|eA |elIenldy [enuuy e

SunJsoday pue Aduasedsuel)

urmm)D_\ﬁU ’ U1 3SIAUINOD €207 O

pJeog 2y} Aq pauiwia1ap se s|eod jeuolyppe

Jo ‘s|eo3 3uipuny s,1014351Q 9Y3 yoeas djay - Suipung |eUonRIppy .

syuswAed ayew 03 Jua1d1y4nNsul

S9NUIAIJ puN4 [BISUSD UBYA — SUOIINLIIUO) PaJInbay ||y 40 dWOS «

pJeog jo uonassiq Iy .

ISnJ] wouy syjuswAed
—1SNJ] UOISUdd STT UOIIAS

16 of 67



€coz/ot/y

,.‘W.U.A..._.E‘oﬁ [
EETVER
1sed piemo) Juawheq 0JAIBS JUILIND JOJ IS0D)

&-&-

uonNQuIU0) paulwialRq Ajjerenydy

@

..‘nw,..;v_x&‘ P FIANND CUR O

%9 1Se3| je JO uinjal |enuue _uwuuwn_xw ue ules 0} ﬂwcw_mw_u
ISH JO [9A3] 312I9POW € YHM PIISIAUI 3 [|IM 3SNIL §3dO STT UORIDS «

pieOg 3y} JO UOIRIOSIP 3} 18 — Sulpuny |EUOINPPE J1POLID

uonnqliuo)
paulwialaqg Ajjelseniay 01 |enba — Suipuny jeuonippe Jejnday «

€20
‘0€ dUN[ 31043 UOI||IAl Z'Z$ 4O UOIINGLIJUOD AW }-3UO - ulpuny |BIIU] «

pJeog Jo13SIq JO UORBIISI IV «

ISNJL 03U| SUOHNQLIU0)
—1sn1 §3dO STT UORIS

T D €01 O

"Aigen g3d0 22npai 0y paijdde aq pjnom spuny
959y pue ‘pund |e42ud9 3y} uey) Ajes Jaysiy e je 3sasdul Suljessuad
J0 |e03 93 yuM pa31SaAUl 3G PINOM ISNJL STT Y} ul ASuow 3y «
'sjyauaq
93d0 punj 03 1snJ| STT UONI3S € Ysi|qeisa pjnom PUISIg ayL «

ISNIL STT uoiPas

*A31|1GIX3]} UOIINGLIIUOI 34NINY JO) MO||E
0} 3SNJL GTT UOI}I3S 03 ‘9|qIssOd UIYM ‘SUOIINCLIIUOD [BUOIHPPE NEIAl o

‘IsSndLSTT
uO01323S 3y} ul Spuny wouj pied aq [|Im suoesi|qo uyauaq s eah yoe3 .

'sieak aininy jje ut Ayjigen
|elIeN3dY SH JO %00T PUB %06 UdaMi1aq 98e31uadiad papuny e ulejulelA «

"€207 Aq Aujiger |enen3oy sy Jo Sulpuny %56 Yoeay «

s|eon

80 T BOANND EUR O

17 of 67



gcoz/oe/y

“,mmmoﬂzu‘m.u ’ “2U] ISIAUINOD €20 @

u,‘mmwc_:\ﬂ.w.o ’ U1 3SIAUINOD €207 O

sieah anly Asans 9ouo ueyy Ajpusnbauy sso| ON

p4e0g 1913SIQ JO UORRIISIA IV «

Adijod mainay

“,mmmoﬂzu‘m.u ’ “2U] ISIAUINOD €20 @

110day |elduUBUI{ dAISUBYDIWO) |ENULY «
Adijod Suipuny .
:91ISgeam uQ «
Su01INQLIIU0D g3d0 S1s!| 3198png SuilessdQ [enuuy «
sieaA Suneusalje ul uolen|eA pJeMIOS-||0Y «
sieaA omy AJana uonenjea N4 «
pJeogq 10143s1Q 03 S1oday uollen|ep |elIen1dy

SunJsoday pue Aduasedsuel)

urmm)D_\ﬁU ’ U1 3SIAUINOD €207 O

sjudwAed jauag pasinbay .

ISnJ] wouy syjuswAed
—1snil 94340 STT Uoi}das

18 of 67



1S9AUAOD) “ 2U1353AIN0D €207 ©

uljaseq ZZoz—— U 0D WZ Z§=——

£07 $E0Z £E07 ZEOZ TEOZ OEOZ 6707 §207 L707 9207 STOT 420
000055

TS0Z 0S0Z 6¥0Z SY0Z L50Z 90T SKOT VPO EYOZ ZVOZ TYOZ OVOZ 6EOZ BEOZ LEOZ OF
000001$
o00'0stS
0000025

0000525

0000085

suonNgUIU0) [e10L.

3seall9( os|e p|NoM SuoiNgLIU0) 3ining

1591UIA0D) " U1 153AUIA0D €207 ©

segeres O
{wainy)
UORNQUILOD WE TS

Amqery paay papniUn

Ajjeaneweup
9seaJ29p pjnom ANjiqer] panJddy papunjun

1S9AUAOD) “ 2U1353AUIN0D €207 ©

eah uad %9 ag pjnom 1eyy pawnsse am ‘sisAjeue siy3 jo asodund ay3 Jo4 «
‘IsSnJl 9yl Ul SJUSWIISSAUL UO uJinlal Uwuuwaxw
ay3 Sujyolew a1ey 1N0dsIQ e 8uisn salll|igel| Yl an|eA 0} pamojje
9q p|NoMm 1214151 Y3 ‘pamoj|oj pue pardope a4am Ad1jod SIY3 4 «

98uey) jo edw

1591UIA0D) " “2U1153AUIA0D €207 ©

"ISNJL 9y} WoJj s3yauaq g340 Aed pjnom 1o11s1Q YL »
‘papuny si uoisuad §,191431S1Q Y1 Aem a3 01 Je|IWIS *SISBq PauUIWISIap
>__m_._m3uum ue uo isnJj ayi 01 suolIngliauod ayew pjnom 1011sIg ayl
‘saeaA auninj uj o

Jeah siyrisnig g3d0
Ue 0} UOl[|Iw Z'ZS JO UoiINgli3uod SWi3-aUo B ew pjnoM 10141sig dYL »

Suipun4 g3d0 pasodoud

gcoz/oe/y

19 of 67



u.mmmc_w«mm..v ’ U1 3SIAUINOD €207 O

“JIPNE INOYIM UONBWIOJUI SIY} UO PaI|3J SBY ISDAUIAOD UBUWIOISND J0) BIBMOS

ay3 dojanap 03 Asenioe s Jawoisn) Jo/pue Jawolsn) Ag papinoid suondwnsse |elienioe pue ‘suoisinosd

ue|d ‘eep sNsuUad Pasn sey ISIAUIAOD “uoluldQ [BIIENIIY JO SIUWIEIS 9IN}ISUOD UoneIuasald siyy Jo sindino
op Jou ‘salien1dy Jo Awapedy uesuawy ayy Ag paesinwoud se spiepuels yim aduepiodde ul pasedald jou ase
uonejuasaid siy} pue aiemyos ayy “sajduld Suiunoddy padaddy Ajjesauan Jo pieog spiepuels Suunoddy
JUBWUISA0D 3Y) JBpUN Spiepuels Ym adueljdwod aajuesens Jou op sindino 4anamoy ‘sishjeue pue
suo1dafold punos Aj[eloueuly SIaj0 3IEMOS B “[EIIIUSPI BJE S|IPOW [BLIENIIE OM] OU SE ‘S}NSJ UOIIEN|eA
|eLiEN}O. Yo1eW AjLIBSS3I3U 10U |[IM SHNSJ IEMIOS B} ‘S}NSJ UOIIEN|EA [BLIENIIE JSuleSe palsal Iy

Jawiepsig

155ALAOE)

4"

U] 1SBAUINOD £20C O

gcoz/oe/y

u.mmmc_w«mm..v ’ U1 3SIAUINOD €207 O

0TT'EL6'TS VN sduines
62C'SLS'ES 67€'875'SS |e1oL.
SUOIINQLIUOD INT'ZS  duljeseq ZZ0T

SUOIINQIIIUOD [BUOINPPY WO SSuines

0502 Y3nouayi sSuines pardafoid

20 of 67



€coz/oz/y

v 3nS

N9T6ES UOIsuad ‘Uol||iwg S §3d0 :suonesijqo Ajjiqel| Suimois «
‘A4 J9yloue ul pun4 9AI9s3Y 9Y3 woJy Juads

pue A4 Jolud e u| paAIadal aq Aew spunj uoneASIUIWPY JUBID «
"jJuawaaise Japun pajedo|e

junowe juess yajew jou Aew sjuessd wody swodul JUBWISINqUIRY <«

*(*239 ‘uiwpe juess ‘suedas
awdinba uojieys Sulojiuow Jie ‘sasealdu) el aduensu| dnolo
‘papunjun asuodsad aiyp|im) Ajjeass Alea ued swa)l ISUadX] «

*("239 ‘ulwpe jueud ‘suoissiwd
uo paseq saaj ‘@8esn/uononposd uo sa9j (A 9)31L) 94n0s
Jofew ‘suoijeaijdde ‘syuwuad) Ajpesss Asea ued swayl SNUBADY «

s

‘papasau aiam suawisnipe Jead-piw sofew oN =

‘9pewW Sem |d) PUoAaq aseatoul ON =

:M31A1 398pNq (€2-2202) A4 101id

€S

*PAAIRIAI UDBQ dARY SIUBWWOD dljgnd ON

*9}1SQOM 3} UO pue 2140 1914351 Y3 Ul M3IADI

a1|gnd 10} a|qe|leAe uaaq sey 193png Yeiq pasodoid
‘pardope/pasodo.d 198pnq |eulj uaym Sunaasw

‘pJeOg pPajnpayds 1Xau Je spua polad Juawwod 31|qnd
"€202 ‘07 |4dy — paonou - Sulieay a1iqnd |eijiuj

‘€202 ‘TZ Y24eN uedaq - pouad Jusawwod aljgnd Aep-og
‘TETOY

uo103s ‘@9po) A1ajes 1B Yi|eaH elulojlje) Jad padiioN

SN S

Topss

€207 ‘07 |udy

193png $Z-€20T A4
3jeaq pasodoud

AWOVNIN

21 of 67



€coz/oz/y

sapus

"AY|1qel] 9340 Ssa1ppe 03 wia)! dul| JO UONIPPE 3|qISSOd ‘SYIdIeD
0} JuawAed uoisuad TyNY dn 231y ||IM S1Y) — passaJppe aJe salj|iqel|
93d0 pue uoisuad ay} |un 338pnq pasuejeq Ajnal e aAey 03 3NJIYIQ <«

[S0T99#] AepainQ |eaide) ul Sway Joy dAIBSaY PaJaqUINIUL WO OES+H
ul y2eq ppe a2uo) ¥SyTS- Inoqe je pasodoud 128png 3d1ap JedA siyl .
J0ZTS$- Inoge e panosdde 3o8pnq 0yep Jeak jse]
:pasodoud aduejeq 3d1y9p Suipieday «

[0S009#] MOTTS -
(1s11e12ads Ayjenp Jiy) uonisod yeis uado auo papunjun .
:ud)e) ApeaJje saunseaw |eniu| <«

L3NS

Sasuadxa uj aspaldul YOpTS O [[0IaA0 <«
238 ‘(3@ ‘VOIdVD
‘vas)) sdiysiaquiaw ‘suonediunwwod ‘swesdoid auljuo/aiemyos ‘@aueinsul
yieay ‘(VINYQS) @2ueinsul ul saseasdul Apeals usaq aney a1ay) SIeaA aY3JanQ =

[0S6094] "S1502 [N} 03 BNP SIUBUIIUIBW BJDIYSA Ul ISEIIDU| =

[0sT09#] (1vNY) sasso| puny uoisuad 3|qissod
0} anp saseaJoul Jasie| Suipuad pue (SY3d|ed) Aujigel| uoisuad ul aseadu|

[¥8T09# ‘SLT09#] "S@a41324 pue saaho|dwsa yjoq Joj swniwaud ueld
y3|eay 103y 03 sanuijuod — SYjdied Aq sue|d adueinsu| dnous ul SISeaoU| =

3W02U| Ul 35D2193p YOZS b AlYBNoI |D13N0 <

[Sereps# pue
0S0Ev#] Wweid aay paquasasd Aq 39530 sue|d Juawadeue ows pue sywsad
uing SN 10§ 93} weiold uing SUINBM WOL BNUADI J9SHO S| dWOodU| Jeinday
aseaoul $a9) Jwiad uing papaau e Jo [enagep Suloug .«
$934 JWIad uing ul Ae|aQ - UIIUOD PEOS BYUMOQ =

‘IdD puoAaq sueah £
ul (Jo1oe4-X) S824n0S paniwiad 10) S3|qe] 93 0] SASEIIIUI OU U dARY 3J3YL =

1an0AJIeD JO 3sn {pajdadde Junowe
jueJs a)idsap SalIeA SHUBWIBSINQLUIDL JUBIS WO A4 DY) JOJ DNUIARL |BNPDY =

[0S TEY# 122V 128png] *s321n0S A 3311 JO[BJA] OM) WOI) SNUIASI Ul 35BIID] =

sapus

*519p UOoISUdd
8 §3d0 dUIWIAN3AP 03 53500 1oddns IPISINO Ul 3SEAIDU| «

‘panoidde Ajsnoinaud se |dD sapnjpul 198png pasodold 9yl «

*swesoud jueid ul siejjop uol||iw £T$ JO Juswadeuew
sapnjoul 498png SunesadQ Je||op Uol||IW £°Z$ WUBLINI BY] «

'S9IINIDS
J0 53502 Jays1y pue (‘233 ‘|any ‘A)d14329|3) uoilejul 0} NP
Ajpsow swia)l asuadxa maj e u| sasealdu] 1oy 1dadxa ‘198pnq
A4 paidope 1se| 01 Jejiwis AlaA si 198png pasodold [|elaAQ «

22 of 67



€coz/oz/y

s ..
' Quep |epueuly apioid im 1eyy .ﬂm..g IX3U 33 J3A0 sapt|iqer|
3a0 PuUe uoIsuad ay3 SuiSeuew pue SuiSSaIppe JOj SWI} SMO|Y =
*(Asessadau 1) 3oyap Suluiewal Joy aAIasay Suisn uodn ARy =
JeaA 3se| 03 Jejiuis 31219p yum 198png anoiddy =
:Buneaw pieog Ae|p/1xau ay3 e 3sa83ns «

,198pnq paoue|eq e ana1yoe 03 Alessadau X, J0j anjea
9jendoudde ay3 Ayauapi |leys 04V 2Y3 ‘4eaj aseg ay3 Suimo||oy
JeaA |easly yaea 1oy ssado.d Aseyaspnq |enuue ayy jo ped

Sy :anjeA Jojoe4-X Jo uoneulwialag, — (e)(1)(8)0oy 3Ny PMISIa  «

35E2JOUl ANUIARI U] Y58 IN0ge
03 s33enba J032e4-X 0} SBAIUI %QT V ‘DSEI2UI SNUIASI Ul 45Z$
1N0qe 0} $33enba 103284-X 0} %E 4O ASEIDU| UR A||BJaUdD) 910N

suo1ISaND,/uoISSNIsIQ

198png vZ-€20T Ad
}jeaq pasodoud

(sJeaA may e Ajuo Joj Jeah yoea g |jews
e uayl) LT - 9T A4 ul o8e sieadh £ sem (|dD puoAaq) aseasurise] «

$599) Jwad 03 aseatou] aininy e aje|dwiauo) «

398pnq Japun 8uiaq Jo
S9]BJ SS9IXD W04} dWod Jou pip Ajjiqel| ay) o3 Ajdde 03 ajqejieae
S1 183 pun4 9AJ3S3Y Y3 Ul UOI||IWZ ZS$ PRIaGUINIUBUN BYL

's1edh +QT 1o}
salll|Iqel| 9340 8 uoisuad Sulinided uaaq jou sey (1030e4-X) S99
1JUDID1YJNSUI UDD( dARY S99} 321ISIQ <«

23 of 67



Agenda ltem: 4.2



North Coast Unified
Air Quality Management District
707 L Street, Eureka, CA 95501
(707) 443-3093
www.ncuagmd.org

TO: North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District Board
FROM: Brian Wilson, APCO

SUBJECT: District Activity & Air Quality Monitoring Report

DATE: May 18, 2023

ACTION REQUESTED: By Consent, Accept and File District Activity Reports
SUMMARY:

Attached is a summary of the major District activities logged during the reporting period
and a air quality monitoring report for the most recent period.

25 of 67



114

ve

(442

€L

(4

Sl

29

€l

19

L62°cl

L

L

v€9°'C

1€9°C

6l

14

S61

LE

s|ejol
(44114

cl
14

6€

9l

8ze's
25°]

9

65C'L

vyl

L

sjejol  29@ AON 190 ydeg  Bny
alA

Ainp

9l

c6L

cll

Lve
16¢

%00}

o€

143

aunp  Aep ady

6l

€l

Ge

L

16

e

191

%001

33

Iep

€l

ol

€C

€8L'c

[414

92

65€

%00}

qod

6¢

0

9L

€Ll

§/S

1€9

%00}

uep

sng |ooyas |einy :pied Sjueis

UINYVA -pled sjueln

13fo|\ :pied sjuein

9A0)SPOOAN :pled Sjuelo
pamalAay SHUBWIND0( [BJUBWUOIIAUT

panss| (SAON) uolje|oiA jo (s)ad1joN
pPassasoid SUOIBIRIION SO}Saqsy

s0)saqsy - suonaadsu|

$924n0S 3|IqO|\ - suonaadsu|

$924n0G Joul - suondadsu|

$921n0g Jofepy - suonoadsul

uoljeulwId}a@ Snwiulwaq 3dinog Aleuonelg
paA1aoay "sddy jwiad 92inog Aieuoljelg
(papuawe) panss| s}iwiad 32i1nos Aleuoljels
(mau) panss| sjiwiad 924nog Aleuoljels
pazuoyiny saioy

panss| suonezuoyny uing diNS

pamalnay (dINS) sueld Juswabeuely ayjows
panss| spwliad ,.Aeq uing oN,,

panss| sjiwiad uing pJepue}g-uoN

panss| sjlwiad uing (jeljuapisay) piepuels
(%) sAeq@ uing aAissiwiad

(,Ae@ uing oN,,) sAeq uing aAIssiwiad-UoN
sAeq uing aAIssiwiad

Buluing uadQ - sasuodsay juiejdwon

|e1auag - sasuodsay juiejdwon

1oday AlAIdY £20¢

26 of 67



NCUAQMD Air Quality Monitoring Report
May 2023

The following information summarizes ambient air quality data with respect to applicable State and
Federal Ambient Air Quality Standards (AAQS) for the period of January 2023.

Air Monitoring Data Summary
PM1o AAQS:

1) State PM1o 24-hour AAQS -
e No exceedances were recorded at the Eureka Jacobs station using a Federal Equivalent
Method (FEM) monitor during this period.
2) Federal PM1o 24-hour AAQS -
e No exceedances were recorded at the Eureka Jacobs station using a Federal Equivalent
Method (FEM) monitor during this period.

PM2s AAQS:

1) State PM2s 24-hour AAQS -
e FRM data not yet received for January 2023.
e No exceedances were recorded at either the Crescent City or Weaverville stations using non-
FEM monitors during this period.
2) Federal PM2s 24-hour AAQS -
e FRM data not yet received for January 2023

e No exceedances were recorded at either the Crescent City or Weaverville stations using non-
FEM monitors during this period.

Gaseous Pollutant AAQS:

a) Ozone (O3) -
e There were no State or Federal AAQS exceedances recorded at the Eureka Jacobs station for
this pollutant during the period.
b) Nitrogen Dioxide (NOz2) -
e There were no State or Federal AAQS exceedances recorded at the Eureka Jacobs station for
this pollutant during the period.
c) Carbon Monoxide (CO) -
e There were no State or Federal AAQS exceedances recorded at the Eureka Jacobs station for
this pollutant during the period.

27 of 67



Particulate Matter (PM) Levels in Relation to State Ambient Air Quality Standards (AAQS):

(Excluding data which is undergoing Exceptional Event Exclusion Determination)

Period of January 2023

Air Monitoring Station

PMo24-hour Average Max

PMy, Rolling Arithmetic Mean

PM,.5 24-hour Average (FRM) MaX occenser =2

PM,s 2022 Arithmetic Mean (FRM)

PM, s 24-hour Average (Non-FEM) Max

PM, s Rolling Arithmetic Mean (non-FEM)

Crescent City Weaverville
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A

* Instrument not used for Federal Attainment Designation

28 of 67




PM1o Data and Trends:

Eureka, Humboldt County

Jacobs Station FEM 24 Hr PM,, January 2023

50

30

ug/m?

20 A

10 A

0 A I
,"

S A S
& &S v
\'&{”\m\"’q?‘\f’o\‘&?\'\'@wf’qﬁw '“v»x-»xn',\ww'»m'»ww\'\f’»’\f
NN NN N S SN U

e State PM1o 24-Hour AAQS is 50 ug/m?; Federal PM1o 24-Hour AAQS is 150 ug/m?.

o State PM1o Annual Arithmetic Mean AAQS is 20 ug/m?; There is no separate Federal PM1o annual standard.
e Humboldt County is classified as non-attainment for the State PM1o AAQS

PM10 2015 to 2022

40.0
350
30.0
250
20.0
15.0
100

5.0

o0

0L

2016

007 Z01E 019 TaTa 021 T2

e State PM1o Annual Arithmetic Mean AAQS is 20 ug/m?3; There is no separate Federal PM1o annual standard.

Jacobs PM,,; Annual Average 2013-2022 Excluding EE Events

2100

15
(an)
£

B 10

5

o

2013 2004 2016 2017 2009 2020 2021 2022

¢ State PMio Annual Arithmetic Mean AAQS is 20 ug/m?3; There is no separate Federal PMio annual standard.

29 of 67




PM2.5 Data and Trends:

Eureka, Humboldt County

Jacobs Station FRM 24 Hour PM 2.5 December FRM 2022

35.0

30.0

20.0

ugfm3
150
100
N I I
1 = 0 = . a1 B 0B
v O " "
Fy S
o \\d
o ,,’N

e Federal PM2s 24-Hour AAQS is 35 ug/m?3; There is no separate State PM2.s 24-Hour standard

Eureka PN, ; Monthly Averages 2013-2022

25

20

15
=

10

5

o

January February March April Py June Juhy August September October RNowvember December
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Jacobs PM, ; Annual Average 2013-2022

12.00

10000

8.00

Ese
g

400

200

000

2% 2014 2015 2018 2047 2018 2009 2020 2021 2022

¢ State PM2s Annual Arithmetic Mean AAQS is 12 ug/m?; There is no separate Federal PM2s annual standard

30 of 67



Crescent City, Del Norte County

Crescent City Station
NOMN-FEM 24 Hr PM, . January 2023

35

30

25

20

ug/m?
15

10

&F F F & & & s s & S S
IR A S M\o\” Qx:l\” S"’O N\o\” &”0 37‘*” R A o
o Federal PMzs 24-Hour AAQS is 35 ug/m?; There is no separate State PM2s 24-Hour standard
¢ This monitor is not used for attainment decisions
Crescent City PM, - Monthly Average 2016- 2022
30
5
20 — 16
- — 3017
£
3 — 0018
10 — 2015
— 2 020
5
— —_—2021
0 e 02 2
Jan Feb Mar April May June Juby Aug Sept Oct Now Dec
Crescent City PM, c Annual Average 2013-2022
12
10
B
£6
g
4
2
0
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

e State PM2s Annual Arithmetic Mean AAQS is 12 ug/m?®; There is no separate Federal PM2s annual standard.

31 of 67




Weaverville, Trinity County

Weaverville Station
Non-FEM 24 Hr PM, . January 2023
35
30
25
20 -
ug/m?3

15
10

5 7 I

. .l_,I,, |

& P "””i’”i”’i”’i”'»’»’»’»’i”»"’»’i"m'{.”'»‘c’ RS R ]
o \m\ &\ &\'\, ~,\°’\m \\b\” & \& \q\& o\&\@ \0\'& \Q\w&"\'&"\ £ \“’b\@\”l\&\*\e\‘?\i\'@\e\w"\o s %\e&h\: 4;\” & & &\W° g\"l@\w"\%@

o Federal PM25 24-Hour AAQS is 35 ug/m3; There is no separate State PM25 24-Hour standard
e This monitor is not used for attainment decisions

Weaverville PM; ; Monthly Average 2015-2022
300
50
200
%
®
1%0
100
— 2 OL S
016
50 a7
— O 0
— 3L S
2020
o — D004
Jan e Mar Apri May Jure Judy Aug Sept oct Now Dex 2002
Weaverville PM, s Annual Average 2013-2022 Without EE Events
16
14
12 —
10
£ s
Qo
=]
6
4
2
0
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

e State PM2s Annual Arithmetic Mean AAQS is 12 ug/m®; There is no separate Federal PM2s annual standard

32 of 67



Agenda ltem: 5
Public Comment Period



Agenda ltem: 6



North Coast Unified

Air Quality Management District
707 L Street, Eureka, CA 95501
(707) 443-3093
www.ncuagmd.org

TO: North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District Board

FROM: Brian Wilson, APCO

SUBJECT: Revise Previous Increase For District X-Factor By Change in Consumer Price
Index

DATE: May 18, 2023

ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt Resolution 2023-3: Rescind Resolution 2023-1, and Increase
District X-Factor By Annual Average Percentage Change In Consumer Price Index (CPI) from
the Previous Year

SUMMARY:

At the Governing Board meeting in March 2023, the Board adopted Resolution 2023-1
(attached) which increased the District X-Factor fee by 3.19%, from $150 to $155. However
upon review, it was discovered that the rule had been incorrectly applied where the X-Factor
was increased by simply the actual Consumer Price Index (CPI) rather than the “change” in the
CPI as required by the rule (see attached excerpt of District Rule 400(B)) which would be 7.3%.

Specifically, District Rule 400(B) states that the value of “X” shall be rounded to the nearest
whole dollar, and according to section 400(B)(1)(a)(ii) it should be increased at a minimum by:
“‘An adjustment in amount not greater than the change in the Consumer Price Index, as
determined pursuant to Section 2212 of the Revenue and Taxation Code.” Section 2212 states
that: “Percentage change in the cost of living” means the percentage change from April 1 of the
prior year to April 1 of the current year in the California Consumer Price Index for all items, as
determined by the California Department of Industrial Relations.”

However, since the March-April data is typically not yet available from the State of California
DIR in the Spring of each year, the annual percentage change (January 2022 to January 2023)
is therefore the closest that can utilized (see attached California DIR CPI, % change from
previous year). Using the correct factor would result in 7.3% annual average percentage
change from the previous year. As a result, the District X-Factor fee would then change from
$150 to $161. Therefore, Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution 2023-3 which is
attached for consideration and approval.

35 of 67



COASY
STy,

North Coast Unified TR
Air Quality Management District = (4 )
707 L Street, Eureka, CA 95501 :
(707) 443-3093
www.ncuagmd.org

Resolution 2023-1:

Increase District X-Factor by Consumer Price Index

WHEREAS, the District has adopted a permit fee schedule in its Regulation IV, with the stated
purpose of allowing the District to fully recover all costs associated with implementation,
inspection, and enforcement of the air quality programs under the District’s jurisdiction;

WHEREAS, Rule 400(B)(1) of Regulation IV allows for an annual adjustment of the hourly cost
of operations portion of all fees (the “X-Factor"); and

WHEREAS, Rule 400(B)(1)(a) states that the value of “X” shall be rounded to the nearest whole
dollar, and shall be assigned by the District Board of Directors each budget year through
resolution, based on two components, either:
1) The actual program costs for the immediately preceding year; or
2) An adjustment in amount not greater than the change in the Consumer Price Index, as
determined pursuant to Section 2212 of the Revenue and Taxation Code; and

WHEREAS, the fees charged pursuant to Regulation |V are imposed to recover the reasonable
regulatory costs to the District for issuing licenses and permits, performing investigations,
inspections, and audits, and the administrative enforcement and adjudication thereof are not
taxes as defined in Section 1(e)(3) of Article XIll C of the California Constitution (Proposition
26); and

WHEREAS, the annual average percentage change from January 1, 2022 to December 31,
2022 in the Consumer Price Index: All Urban Consumers, California, all items (1982-84=100)]
was 3.19224%.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District
Board hereby increases the Regulation IV, Rule 400 X-Factor by 3.19%, and rounded to the
nearest whole dollar.

" 3 ‘\b l %D
Board Chair Date:
Q\,“ Se | 3/i6)23
Clerk of the Boa&d % Date: '

36 of 67



North Coast Unified Air Quality

[57%
'\}ll 2
N

Management District TR |

707 L Street, Eureka, CA 95501 % i
(707) 443-3093 e 0
www.ncuagmd.org T

CLERK’'S CERTIFICATE

| hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution 2023-1:
Increase District X-Factor by Consumer Price Index, has passed and was adopted at a
Regular Meeting of the North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District held in

Eureka, County of Humboldt, State of California, held on the 16 day of March, 2023 by
the following vote:

AYES: 3
NOES: 0
ABSENT: 2

ABSTENTIONS: 0 g S ;
A /)

Erin Squire, Clerk oZAhe\Board

North Coast Unified/Air Quality
Management Distri¢t

37 of 67



RULE 400
FEE CALCULATION & ADMINISTRATION

A. PURPOSE: The purpose of this rule is to allow the District to recover reasonable costs incurred directly and
indirectly associated with the implementation of air quality programs under its jurisdiction including the issuance
of permits, inspection and enforcement, surveillance, planning, research and monitoring, and administration.
The authority to establish this rule is provided for in H&SC §41512, §42311, and §42364.

B. FEE CALCULATION & FEE SCHEDULES: District fees are determined by choosing the appropriate fee schedule(s)
and then selecting the applicable multiplier(s) from the tables. The actual fee is then calculated by multiplying
the “X-Factor Multiplier” obtained by the current value of the “X-Factor”.

1. X-Factor: District operational costs are annually estimated on a per hour basis which is referred to as the “X”
or the “X-Factor”.

a. Determination of X-Factor Value: As part of the annual budgetary process for each fiscal year following
the Base Year, the APCO shall identify the appropriate value for “X” necessary to achieve a balanced
budget. The value of “X” shall be rounded to the nearest whole dollar, and shall be determined upon
two components, either:

i. The actual program costs for the immediately preceding year; or
ii. An adjustment in amount not greater than the change in the Consumer Price Index, as determined
pursuant to Section 2212 of the Revenue and Taxation Code.

b. X-Factor Established by Resolution: The value of “X” shall be assigned by the Governing Board each fiscal
year via resolution.

c. Base Year: Calendar year 2005 is established as the base year with an X-Factor value of $57.50.

d. X-Factor Multiplier: The resources necessary to perform services, programs, and activities by the District
are represented as an X-Factor “Multiplier”. The applicable X-Factor Multiplier is listed in the fee tables
associated with the appropriate fee schedule(s).

C. Limitation on Fees: Notwithstanding the fees specified in the District Fee Schedules, if the actual costs of
processing an ATC or a PTO application substantially differ from the fees as determined by the applicable fee
schedule, the applicant may be assessed the actual costs. The costs, as determined by the APCO, shall include
but not be limited to the direct and indirect expenditures incurred by the District to evaluate, inspect, and permit
the subject equipment or device.

D. Permits Issued by the Hearing Board: An ATC or a PTO issued by the District Hearing Board is subject to the fees
established pursuant to this Regulation.

E. Advanced Deposit of Evaluation Costs: Where the APCO determines that either the ATC application or the PTO
application evaluation will require special handling and analyses due to the quantity or quality of emissions, or
due to the proximity of sensitive receptor(s), or the applicants history, or, the complexity of the equipment,
activity, or operation being permitted, the APCO may require the applicant to pay a deposit toward the actual
costs of the evaluation up to 100% of the estimated permit application evaluation actual costs. The APCO shall
maintain a record of costs incurred and on written request from the applicant submitted within six months of
the evaluation shall refund to the applicant any unused evaluation costs.

F. Cancellation or Denial of Applications: If an application for an ATC or a PTO is canceled, or if an application is
denied and such denial becomes final, the application fee required herein shall not be refunded nor applied to
any subsequent application.

September 19, 2019 Rules and Regulations
Reg. IV, Rule 400 20f4 North Coast Unified AQMD

38 of 67



Year Month California® | Los Angeles San San Diego | Riverside | U.S. City

Long Beach | Francisco | carlsbad® San AverageP
Anaheim® Oakland Bernardino
Hayward® OntarioP
2022 | January 7.5% 8.2% 8.6% 7.5%
2022 | February 7.4% 7.4% 5.2% 7.9%
2022 | March 8.5% 7.9% 10.0% 8.5%
2022 | April 7.7% 7.9% 5.0% 8.3%
2022 | May 8.0% 8.3% 9.4% 8.6%
2022 | June 8.3% 8.6% 6.8% 9.1%
2022 | July 7.7% 7.3% 9.2% 8.5%
2022 | August 7.5% 7.6% 5.7% 8.3%
2022 | September 7.8% 8.2% 8.4% 8.2%
2022 | October 7.3% 7.5% 6.0% 7.7%
2022 | November 6.0% 6.7% 7.5% 7.1%
2022 | December 5.6% 4.9% 4.9% 6.5%
2022 | Annual Average 7.3% 7.4% 5.6% 7.7% 8.7% 8.0%
2023 | January 5.8% 6.4% 7.3% 6.4%
2023 | February 5.4% 5.1% 5.3% 6.0%
2023 | March
2023 | April
2023 | May
2023 | June
2023 | July

2023 | August

2023 | September

2023 | October

2023 | November

2023 | December

2023 | Annual Average

Date of last update: 4/12/2023

@ Weighted average of the consumer price indexes for Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim, San Francisco-
Oakland-Hayward, San Diego-Carlsbad, and Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario. A conversion factor has been
included for comparability of 2018 data with 2017 and prior years. Computed by the Department of Industrial
Relations, Office of the Director - Research Unit from indexes issued by the U.S. Department of Labor.

b Source: U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. Beginning with the November 2017 data,
indexes for San Diego-Carlsbad will be published bi-monthly on odd months only (January, March, May, etc.).
The Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario indexes are on a December 2017 = 100 base and will be published bi-
monthly on odd months only (January, March, May, etc.).

39 of 67




North Coast Unified
Air Quality Management District
707 L Street, Eureka, CA 95501
(707) 443-3093
www.ncuagmd.org

Resolution 2023-3:
Increase District X-Factor by Consumer Price Index

WHEREAS, the District has adopted a permit fee schedule in its Regulation IV, with the stated
purpose of allowing the District to fully recover all costs associated with implementation,
inspection, and enforcement of the air quality programs under the District’s jurisdiction;

WHEREAS, the District has adopted a permit fee schedule in its Regulation IV, with the stated
purpose of allowing the District to fully recover all costs associated with implementation,
inspection, and enforcement of the air quality programs under the District’s jurisdiction;

WHEREAS, Rule 400(B)(1) of Regulation IV allows for an annual adjustment of the hourly cost
of operations portion of all fees (the “X-Factor”); and

WHEREAS, Rule 400(B)(1)(a) states that the value of “X” shall be rounded to the nearest whole
dollar, and shall be assigned by the District Board of Directors each budget year through
resolution, based on two components, either:
1) The actual program costs for the immediately preceding year; or
2) An adjustment in amount not greater than the change in the Consumer Price Index, as
determined pursuant to Section 2212 of the Revenue and Taxation Code; and

WHEREAS, the fees charged pursuant to Regulation IV are imposed to recover the reasonable
regulatory costs to the District for issuing licenses and permits, performing investigations,
inspections, and audits, and the administrative enforcement and adjudication thereof are not
taxes as defined in Section 1(e)(3) of Article XIIl C of the California Constitution (Proposition
26); and

WHEREAS, the District previously adopted Resolution 2023-1 on March 26, 2023 which was in
error as it only indicated the “annual average” of the Consumer Price Index (CPI) not the
“annual average percentage change from the previous year” in CPI; and

WHEREAS, the State of California Department of Industrial Relations indicated that the annual
average percentage change in CPI from January 2022 to January 2023 (California, All Urban
Consumers) was 7.3%.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District
Board hereby supersedes Resolution 2023-1, and adopts a 7.3% increase to the Regulation IV,
Rule 400 X-Factor rounded to the nearest whole dollar.

Board Chair Date:

Clerk of the Board Date:

40 of 67



Agenda ltem: 7



North Coast Unified

Air Quality Management District
707 L Street, Eureka, CA 95501
(707) 443-3093
www.ncuagmd.org

TO: North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District Board

FROM: Brian Wilson, APCO

SUBJECT: Proposed FY 2023-24 District Budget

DATE: May 18, 2023

ACTION REQUESTED: Close Public Hearing and Adopt the Proposed FY 2023-24
District Operating Budget by Roll Call Vote

SUMMARY:

Attached is the final Proposed FY 2023-24 District Budget. No public comments have

been received regarding the proposed draft budget that was initially publicly noticed on

March 21, 2023.

Staff will provide additional information at the meeting and answer any questions. The

Board is requested to close the Public Hearing and adopt the Proposed FY 2023-24
District Budget by roll-call vote.

42 of 67



00505 000702 aviol
's8010AUI anp jsed uo syuawAed aje| Jo uswssassy| 005 - sjuswAed aje 00lL9¥
"1eak yoea sAON| 000°0S 00002 IND “sjusweles 0S09¥
yim pajeroosse sjuaied skemie ase asay A|lesauab ing 1q e aynb Alea ued junowe sy “Jeak yoea saleA (SAON) SUOREIOIA JO 20[JON
Junowe 8yl ‘£O¥Zy PUB G'Z0YZY UONOSS OSBH 0} Juensund pays)|qelse weiboid 84 Ajeuad IIAID S 10UISIQ Y} WOy Pajoajo0 anuanay
S3AILTVNId
005692 051292 aviol
2} ‘suoneoy|pow Juuad ‘BuuasuiBus JoB.4UOD SPISING ‘s33) 8)IPadXa SE LONS SJUNOOOE 93} JAUI0 OJul |8} JOU Op Jey) S9) SNoJUe|[@osIN|  ~ - S824 BUi0 006¥¥
"SaljAoe pue sompau bulioyuo| 000°S8 000706 (pejeubisa) spund Bullojuo Iy 009¥¥
11y s 014810 9y} J0 Joddns piemoy pajeubisap si jey 993 Buuoyuow Jie ue Aed (‘90 ‘K1en0oay JodeA ‘SO 1d) $30inos papiwad ||y
's}0ds J0H ‘88528 Jad AlojuaAul suoiss|wa bupepdn J0 100 8y} 81909 bul|iq 8YL 'SPaye Leay snossoued| - - Aojusau| uoissiwg sjods JoH 0LShPy
-UOU PUB SN0JA0UED 10} (Z'¢) L0F 2INY ‘Al uogeinBay yim aouepioooe ul sa2inos Aleuoness s||iq Jouisiq auy ‘siseq [eluuaipenb e uQ.
'$994 UOISSILT $S30XT pue $99) uopped pieog Bupesy syoes Juncooe sy ‘pieog Buuesy| - - $994 UOISsIW 3 s880X37 @ pJeog buuesH 00¥¥¥
P1481a 2y3 03 uopged e Buwans Aq suopenBal 14s1q Woly soueleA e oy A|dde Aew $22in0s AIBUORE)S ‘SUORIPUCO PaYIWY| Japun
‘Jawabeuew Liojuaaul uoissiwe pue ‘Bugoadsul ‘Bumuiad ‘Bupoesy sienod siy) “wesboid Juawabeuew uesabiyai| 000°GEL 000°0€1 $994 OHO 0SEPY
aje}s ay) Aq pajoaye asoy) pue sa2Inos AIBUORE}S SE yons (SOH D) sasen asnoyuasalo Jwia o) [eluajod arey Yojym sa2inos o) sa|iddy
"0J@ ‘AIAnoe uonongsuod ‘Awouose uo Buipuadep| 000°S L 000°G} $894 dvHSIN sojseqsy Vi*rA44
Kiea ued paniaoal suoljeolddy sywad Juswajeqe sojsagse Jo aouenss| ay) pue suojedidde Jo |eaoidde pue mainsl By} JOACD S8a4
*Rianoe uonijowap Buip|ing o} Joud uoioadsul pue uonesyou ainbal suoisinoid JyHSIN SOISaqsy ayL “L9 Med ¥4 O 0} juensind
(dVYHS3N) sluen|jod Jiy SnopJezeH Joj SPIEpUBLS UOISSIW [euogeN a4 ybnoiy) ainsodxa uoIssIWR S0}Saqse SaZIWIUIW Yd3 3YL
‘sueid uogeBiw (VON) sojsagsy Buwnooo Alleinien Buipnioul (SWOLY) sainsesiy [04U0D XOL JY SlelS Yim pajeroosse sead| 005 0s1 o4 (s)uoneinbay WOLY 00zky
*93@ ‘RIAgoe uoponiysuod ‘Awouods uo bujpuadap Aiea ued paaieoal| 000y 000°¢ $994 uoped)ddy 0SLPY
suopeo|iddy “(sOLd) yw.ed Japun jou Juawdinba Bugsixe pue ‘suoisinal yuuad Bugsixe ‘'sOLY se yons syuuad Joj 9} uojeo|iddy
‘sjuejn|iod JUSLIUIERE-UOU PIEMO} JIPS.0 J9SY0 10} PaSN pue paxueq aq Aew pajeplieA pue jueueuuad| - - $894 UOONpaYy uoissiwg 0S0¥Y
‘leas aJe yojym saainos AIeuopiEls Aq pajelyul SUojNpPal uojss|we paJsinbalun ‘AIgjunjoA ‘sme| [B00] pue ‘9je}s ‘|esapa) 0} Juensing
'suoneysibal 10) a3y uondadsul Jo aieys sPIASIQ By} Jussaidal 000°0€ 000'vZ S804 dy3d epIM-ajelS aleys PIsig SZ0PP
spuny asay | “elwoyied inoybnouy Juswdinbs Jisy) sjesado 0} Japuo ul (dy3d) weibold uonegsibay Juswdinb3 sjgepod apimalels
$,8¥Y Japun syun Jiay) Jasi6a1 ueo uawdinba Jo sadA) Jaylo ulepad pue saulbua [Psalp 9|qeiod JO SI0JeIadO JO SIBUMO ‘Me| BJe)S Japun
$334
000°2€8 002682 aviol
‘(3AS) suonoeux3 Jodep jlog| 000°G6 000°58 SiwIag Kiencoay 1odep 00cEY
10} pue ‘sjeuiuud) yInq ‘(s4Q9o-sanipe4 Buisuadsiq auljoses) suoneys seb 1oy suogeinBal Jouysiq Aq pasinbal aue sjwiad A1enooal Jodep
‘919 ‘A}JIABOB UORONLISUOD ‘AuIoucos uo Bupuadep Alea ueo pan@oas suogeoddy ‘938 ‘s4qo| 000G 000°S} spwied (QLY) onssuo) o] Ayioy ny 0Szey
‘sauojewsald ‘sjued jeydse xiw joy ‘saulbus [@salp se yons ‘Juawdinba ajiqow pue a0inos Aleuone)s 10j S99 Juuad uoINYSUCO [BlIU|
“LL€ZP UORORS OSPH 0 Juensind paysi|qe}sa $a9) Jouisia -0l ‘sauojewald ‘sjue|d yeydse xiw joy ‘sauibus| 000022 000'502 (sQLd) eyesedQ o} syuiied 00zZey
|19sa|p se yons ‘sO L d Bugixe Japun uawdinba aj|qow pue suossiwa Jo ($)221n0s Aleuopes Jouly 10} s} Jjuuad [emaual [enuuy
“80In0s Jofe|\ € 10 Jey) mojeq a.e suoissiwe Jwa| 000°G 00Z'y SjwIed Joully dn8yuAs 09LEY
0} |eguajod sy jeyy os uogesado PuIsal SUoIPUOD Jwiad asnesaq aaInos (A aj3L) Jolep e PaJap|Suod Jou 3. SB2INOS JOUI IBYUAS
“Auedwo) |umeS Ip|oquInH pue ‘oujda|3 3 SBO dljIed ‘Usreylied| 000'ZLE 000062 Spied AepL 0SLEY
9@ :Wewainbai weiboid yuuad A Sp1L 3y} 0} J03(gns ase pue $30In0s Jofeyy PaJAPISUCO a.e Jey) sal|ioey Buimol|oy sy paynuap! sey
Jusig 8yl ‘ssainos Jofep, asay) o} Aldde jey) sjuswalnbal vy [e1apad e ‘Juawnoop a|buis e ul ‘sauiquod Juuad A apiL 3yl (0L
Hed ¥49 0F) A L ul weiboid yuuad Bunesado aaisuayaidwiod e apnjoul (YD) 10V I UBSID [BJ9Pa 3Y) 0} SIUBWIPUBWY 066} YL
'Go¢ S1994juanny ‘Aeq uing B uo UOREZUOYINY UIng B Wim uopd uosald uyim auop aq isnw Bujwng pue ‘pancidde pue - - (SJNS) Sue|d Juswebeuepy ejows AR5 4
POMaIASI LOBD DB S,dINS ‘S9N JOUISIC Ul PAUIINO JEL) SPIJ0Xe PaLLNg 94 0} [BUSJEL 4O JUNOWE SL Jo/pUE (‘039 ‘SaLoy ‘siojuad ‘[eydsoy
‘looyos) Joydaoal aapsuas e joedw) pinod Bujuing uaym sjuLad uing pJepueiS-UuoN aLwos Yim uoiounfuod uj paiinbal ase s JNS
"02$ sI @84 Juan) "sajpadoud [eguapisal jsou 1o} A|eajdA) s)jey Juuad wng| 000°0L 00002 Sjiwied wng pJepuejs 00LEY
Jpiepuess, e sijuad Jojlews ay L ‘Bujuing uado Joy sjuswalinbal 2| oL YOO siuewaidw) [eo0) || Bay Jouisiq Jepun weibold wng ayL
‘(sa.;0e 00g<swnq)| 000°0Z1 000°0Z} Sjiwied wng piepuejS-uoN 0S0€Y
052'1$ ‘(s2108 00€-004) 005$ ‘(S2108 01-1) 08¢ ‘(jLu 8108 | >SWNQ) Op$ Wouy AleA PUB UING BU) JO 92IS BY) J0j PaJal} BJe $33) JuaLND
‘(038 ‘suinq paquosaid ‘uogonpal plezey ‘uawdoasp Auadoid se yons Buiwng jo sadA) Joyio mojje Aew pue) Juwiad uing pIepuels
-UoN,, & s Juuad sabie| ayy *Bujwng uado Joy sjuawainbas 2| 8L YOO sjuawa|dwi Ajieso || B3y Joussiq Jepun weibold wng ayL
SLINY3d
JINODNI ¥V 1NO3Y
|
SLNNODJV 40 STIVLIA ANV NOILAINOS3a 14via a3ldoav INVN| E_.!t
¥2-£202 Ad £2-220C Ad LNNO2OV| LNNODOV|

19bpng $2-£202 A4 pasodold - jousiq uswabeue|y Ayjenp Jiy paiiun iseod YuoN

43 of 67



000682 | 059°¢EL'C JINODNI ¥V INO3N TV.LOL
000°01 000°S1 aviol
“Jainseal) UNoD IploquinH 8y Aq play spuny uo pautes jsasayu| 000704 000G} JUNOOOY [RIBUSD JSaIL| 05008
1S3IHALNI
000°S 0052 vioL
"0J@ ‘suonels buibreyd ayisuo 1oy pasn Adua | 000°G 0052 Woou| snoaue|RIsIN U0 0S€6¥
JO punjal ‘sajeqal pIed JIPauo Jouisiq ‘sisanbal spiooal olgnd JO) PaAISOa) S89) YONS SJUNOJVE. JBLO AQ PAISACO JOU SWIS)I SNOBUR| [ROSIW
SANN4 SNOANVII3OSIN
0005€9 000°6€9 vioL
“uopIpsuNl s30U3sIq 3y uIyIm pasaysiball 000°GE9 000'S€9 Burpun4 abieyding AWQ 99.29Y 0008%
ajo1yaA Jad ¢ 0} dn 109](00 0} PLSIC BY) SIZLOYINE YDIUM ‘522 PUB £2ZHY SUORIBS DSBH 0} juensind Buipung abieyaing 99/zgv
ONIANNH IOUVHIUNS ANG 99,28V
000212 000721 vioL
‘(Wbisieno| - - UlWPY JUBIS UOIONPaY 8YOWSPOO 8)elS Slely
VOOdVO 10} %S 0) Sasuadxa aARefsiuILPe o} %G°6 SBPIN0Jd LOIYM (Z YA) JUBID UOKONPaY YOWSPOOM YYD BU WL LOOU! UILPY
»| 000°0¥% 000'S2 (7 YA) ulwpy Juels 4dasy CEELY
YA 104 (ddgSY) weiboid J0jid sNg [00Ydg [einy 38U} JO UOKEASIUILIPE BU} Y}m PALUNDUI S}SOD JO JUBWISSINGUIISL JOBIIP WL BUICOU! UILIPY
¢| 000°09} 000°'S. (€ YA) ulwpy Juels 4dasy CEELY
YA 104 (ddESY) weiboid J0jid SNg [004dG [einy 3U} JO UOKEASIUIWPE BU} Y}im P.LUNDUI S}SOD JO JUBWISSINGUIRL JOBUIP WO SUI0OU] UILUPY
zl - 000'S2 (2 YA) ulwpy Juess 4dasy LECLY
YA 10} (ddgSy) weiboid J0iid SNg [00YdS [BINY BL JO UOREASIUILPE B} YIM PBLNDUJ S}SOD JO JUSLUSSINGLIIRI JOBJIP WO BUIOOU UIWPY
‘e€Zhy| 000°LL 000°ZL ulwpy - 8bieyding AWQ €269V 0S18%
0S*8H 03 juensind Buipuny Jue.b Jo %5z 9 0} Pajju| uogessiuIWPY ‘(3pIyaA Jad Zg) abieyaing AWQ £268Y 84 JO Uouod UogeRSIuIWPY
SANN4 NOILVHLSININQY LNVYO
000192 008°292 vioL
(910 “oyuow ‘uawidinba Joge|) sHoye BuLOHUOW Jie G'ZWd 10LISIA Puny ARoaIIp Jewy spuny Juels g ZiNd vda| 00€ 2+ 001’6 §'ZNd Bulojuop JIv - JueJ €0} Vd3 0bLLy
"S9IAIE Yoeauno oljqnd SJip|m-a1y paqLOsaId Yim pajeloosse sisoo pue ‘siojeseuoul ueund| 000°SH L 000°SL1 weibolid Juel9 uing paquaseld gavo SlLELY
1y Buonpal-jeny a.yp|w ‘sjosfoud a1y paquosaid Lhim pajeposse (SJNS) sueld Juawabeuepy HOWS pue sjiudd Wng pIepueiS-uUoN
10} SI9AIBM 93 }9SYH0 0} SPUNy 3S3Y) SISN P14SIQ 8y "uoneuawa|dw| sieak om) Jo si juawaalbe uelb A4 gyvD yoes sjuawainbal
VOW elA spuysip 0} Buipuny ybnoiyy ssed sjuawajdw! YOOd VO ‘8¥VO Ui 0e[4U0D Japun “3d14 TYO Yim 0968S/09218S
Ul PaUOISIAUS SE 3l paquosald ul asealou] apmale)s Joddns Jeyy safiAoe Joj Juawaalbe Juelb Japun Bulpuny Juawasinquial Joai1g
'sapoe| 000° L 000} buipuny 0L0L¥
Jo Juswasinquial Joj sysanba. [enuue ajedpnuy “Aiiqesldde ayy syeaw jeys A)e) auo sey Ajuo Aguaund jowsig eyl “suoienbay Jaweaiby juels) uogenbay seo 3 10 aYYD
SED B 10 g¥VD 8y} 0} Palgns sap| 0.} Jo JuaWadI0jud pue uonejuawaldwi Joy JuawaaJbe Juelb Japun Buipuny Juswasinquial JoaIQg
005'6 00S'6 Buipuny S90.L¥
*S3IA RO JO JuawasINqui 1Bl Joj sisanbal [enuue ajedpuy ‘sieak aimny u) papuawe aq Aew juswaalbe uelb pue JA/005' 8% juswealby Jueis) AioueAu| uoissiwg 26l gy aHYD
AeAnejua) Buipuny [enuuy “eseqejep (SyvaI30) waishs Bunioday pue uswdoraq AI0juaAu| SUOISSIWT BILIOYIED BU) Ul Ejep
Kiojuanul uoissiwa ajepdn pue mainal 0} saliAgoe AIoJuaAu| uoISSIWT /6| gY J0) Juswaaibe Juelb Japun Buipuny Juswasinquwial JoaiQq
‘sieak ainny ul papuswe aq kew| - - buipun 4 Jusweaiby 090.¥
uswaalbe el "uonguawaidwi | DNy pue ‘Bugodas suoissiwe ‘suejd uoponpal ‘sbunesw Ajunwwoo ‘Buuoyuow ‘uonesedaid ueid JUBIS) UO1}O8)0Id Jiy Ajunwwo) /19 gV a4VD
‘SUOIEN|BAD S0IN0S SB LYONS SalIAROR Weibold uonoajold Jiy Ajunwwo) /19 gy Jo) juawaalbe yuelb Japun Buipuny juswasinquial Joai1Qq
'0)@ ‘sal|ddns pue juawdinba Buuojuow Jie |ejuawalddns ‘s)s00 JuBLWBDIOUS paJaAcdaJun ‘Yeanno dlgnd| 000°G1 000°0¢€ |ejuswelddng ‘uonjuaaqns SG0.LY
‘suoisinal dis/ajns ‘Buuten yeys se yons sanianoe Joj pajebie) aq pnoo spund  “eje}s ay) Aq panoidde pue uoneslidde Apeak sjouisig
ay) Jad pajeooyje uaaq aAey Jey) sainypuadxa Jo swelboid 10} a1 OL86E DSHH Japun paAiedal Buipuny uoguaagng [guawalddng
00Z'c0l 00Z'c0l oseg ‘uoljusagng 0S0L¥
"(Aunoo yoea 000'g1$) 000'¥ES UBY SS3] Jou Inq eyded Jad ¢zZ'0¢$ 0} dn Jo ajel e je pauangns/papincid si Buipuny uonuaagng aseg
‘Z086E UONYAS DSPH JApun "pasn aq ued ABuow SIy} Yoiym Joj sjiwi| pue sjuawalinbal oyads ase asay) "spuny abieyans uogensibal
BOIYaA JOJou Yym Jo sa2unos Aieuoqels uo saa) ybnouy (j1e Je papuny ‘sesed awos ul Jo) papuny ||y 29 JoUUBD el me| a)ejs Japun
sajepuew weJBoid o Jaquinu e 2.y sPLYSIP 8y} Jey paziubooas ainje|siBa ay) 8sneIaq SpUN UORUBAGNS IS PAAIBORI SPLISIP JIY
SANN4 31V1S
|
SINNODJOV 40 S1IVL3A ANV NOLLAINOS3a 14vNa a3Ldoav ANVN| W3GWNN|
¥2-£20Z Ad £2-2202 Ad LNNO2OV| LNNODOV|

19bpng $2-£202 A4 pasodold - jousiq uswabeue|y Ayjenp Jiy paiiun iseod YuoN

44 of 67



000°L 000°L aviol
‘sayddns §1-0IAOD SapnpU| ‘suogoadsul oy Jeab Jojpue saoys A1ajes se yons juawdinba Ajajeg| 000°+ 000} juswdinb3 Aysjes 66809
S317ddNS ? ININdINDI ALIHVS
00Z'c9 002°€9 aviol
‘901es dn-yo1d abeqleb pue 80140 1oy Sjsoo [eLoyuef [essuag| 0049 0029 |eloyuer @ pjoyasnoy 58509
“suones BuLojuowW Jie Jo soueusjuieW pue sieday| 000°SE 000G} Bunioyuo J1y- oS g°dinb3 ‘soueusjuiey 06509
(‘91 ‘@oueuBUIEW deISPUE|) SJUNOOE SOUBUSIUIEL JAUO Ul Pauoads Jou Juawdinba Joy Aiaoe aoueusureyy| 000'8 0008 SNOBUE(|8JSI g JusWdINb] "eoUBUSIUIE 08509
DC_U__:D 0} S}$00 u_ae pue oueUIIRW UC_U__Dm 000°S 000°'S mc_nv___.um ‘@oueusjuiepy 1509
(‘930 ‘saouad)| a1emyos ‘poddns a}isqam Janias ‘|joshed ‘|lewo/e|6ooo ‘syoogIND| 005 8T 00582 sweiboid g sieindwo) ‘eoueusuiey 05509
‘wooz ‘ubignooq eayspews ‘sjsoo 1) swesboid Liejaudold pue ‘sasuad)| ‘asemyos ‘siaindw oo 1oy $)S00 oUBURJUIBLL [BIBUD)
JONVNILNIVIN 2 SHIVdIY
000001 0007004 aviol
‘0}@ ‘loddns/Buginsuod apisino ‘saouas [efa| ‘sadinas Bugipne pue |epueuly Buipnjoul saoInIes pazije1oads pue [euoissajold 000°00} 00000} S9DINIBS [e108d G g [BUOISSJ0ld 05¥09
SADIAYIS TVYNOISSIH40Ud
000°sZ 00052 aviol
'suofjess bujiojuous Jje snoLeA 1o} Japl e sapnjou) osfe asuadxa siy ) “abelanco soueinsul Ksuow| 000°SZ 00062 0%3 "Ayiger [eleus 0S€09
pue J9|l0q ‘abesanoo suoiss|wo pue sious ‘abelanod apiyaa pue ‘Lelbing ‘aiy Bujpnjou) sbewep Aadod ‘A)jiqe) o1|gnd Joj swnjwalg
JONVHENSNI
0S0°ZL 0€S°LL aviol
‘powiad Jeak Jepus|eo Jad aakojdwa Jad sebem 000‘2$ 1S @y 0} (113) xe) Buiures) uswkoidws| 009°t 0S¥’z 1139 @oueinsu| juswAojdwaun 'sexe] v 05209
10} %1 pue (INg) @dueinsul Juawho|dwaun SJEIS 10} %G| JO Saje. U0RNqIRUO ZZ0Z dY) Buik|dde Aq pajejnojed aJe sexe} asayL
i 96EM ou Yy ‘saBem DIqeXE) O %S| S| ajel xe) aseoipay ayy| 0SY'S | 080°Gl xe| Ajnoag |e100g g a1edipajy §2209
SAXVL 1108 AVd
G2S°006°L 006'828°L aviol
-20uaLadXa SWIE|O PUE S3JeI 2JEIS JO UOIRUIGUIOD B UO Paseq pauluLaiap si pue Aleak pred si soueinsul uonesuadwos siayopy| 00004 0002k 2ouBINSU| uojesuadwoD ,SISHOM 06109
(seakojdwsa oy soue.nsu; 8y oiseg pue| 009°G) 00¥'LL eoueinsu| )7 ‘uoIsIA’lejueq YIS AS 98109
UOISIA ‘|Bluag @pnjoul Yoiym) syyauaq Asejjroue (yWyas) Auoyiny juswabeuew ysiy 1141 [B192dS aL JO 100 8L $3991J2) JUNOJ. SIYL
"uonebi|qo 1gap (g3dO0) sieuag| 08526 000'¥8 soueinsu| dnoi9 seaiey 8109
juawAojdw3 s0d JOYIO $30UISIQ 3y} JO Wed PaJapIsuco S| siy L "96BI9A00 2oUBINSUI U} BRY ,$99.42. 10} JSO0 3L} S}O3j21 JUNOJOE. SIYL
SYE' LbY 000°06€ soueinsu| dnoio saskojdw3 S.109
‘(uejd @oueInsUl Yeay s,WwaisAS Juawaley saakojdws o1|gnd BIUIOJED) SoUBNSUI SHI 4 JOPUN PaIanoo ale saakoldwa Joulsiq
‘Sy3dIeD 0} JuawAed [e10} 3 40 %0E Isowle syuasaidal junowe yny| 000°5.2 005'¥82 SH3dIED - jusweainey 05109
auy seak siy) - 1qep/uogeBbiiqo uoisuad s ousI Y} O} NP SSBAIOUI SISOD “UONEN[eA [eLenie ue yBnoiy) paysiiqelsa aue YNy pue ssjes
S¥3d "(IvNY) ANIger paniooy papunjun [enuuy ayj Joj junowe wns dwn| [enuue ue pue sabem sso.b jo abejusdsad e sked Jouisig 8y L
JOM SLWIIUBAO JO) U_NQ Oomﬂ>> OOQNv OOONF OE_ .h0>o vaQO
‘sjyeuaq aakojdwe piepuesls 1oy a|qibie Jou ase oym poddns/10joRIUO0D 3PISIN0 se saako|dwa aw g Jed pue Areiodwa) Jo) $100 - - (s)eakodwa Jonu0d BpISINO 00109
'$8SBa.JOU| JUsW JO 100 Aue Buipnjoul ‘seakojdwa uaueuuad Z/| Z| 1o} sabem pue Aiejes aseq [enuue papalold 000°690°} 000°0%0'} SebEM g SelEeS 05009
SIOVM B SARVIVS
000°SZ 00062 aviol
JuBWasINgUIIa) JO3Ip BAIda) 0} Bulpuny aoueApe ainbal| 000°GC 000°S2 sauabul uo) 1o} uogelidoiddy 00085
Sa)IAROE S30MISIa By} Jo Auepy “pury pajebiiqo-uou pajebpnq sjouisiQ 8y Jussaidal spury Aousbuuod Jeak ayj Jo 88IN0D B} U INOJO.
Aew yajym ‘p1siqg ay3 Jo sapiAioe [euogelado ayy uj sabueys pue sajjjjiqel| |eosy pajed|ojjueun ssaJppe 0} pasn aJe spuny Aouabuguod
S3AIONIONILNOD HOd4 NOLLVIMdO¥ddY
dASNIdX3 JVY1NO3IH
|
SLNNODJV 40 STIVLIA ANV NOILAINOS3a 14via a3ldoav JNVN| i_.!-
¥2-£202 Ad £2-220C Ad LNNO2OV| LNNODOV|

19bpng $2-£202 A4 pasodold - jousiq uswabeue|y Ayjenp Jiy paiiun iseod YuoN

45 of 67



Z YA oy (ddasy)| - 0000} asuadx3 - (Z YA) UlWpY Jueld ddasy 10929
weiBoid J0|id SNg 00YRS [BINY BU} JO UOKENSIUILIPE SU) LM PRLINOUI SISO0 J0 JUBLUSSINGUIS J0BJIP 0L PASUX® BWI0OU] UIWPY
ASNIdX3 NOLLVHLSININAY LNVHO
00029 000°0S IvioL
‘suonejs Buuoyuow Jie Joj Juawdinba mau Jo aseyoing 000°0€ 000°0€ 000°G$< BuLIOyUOW Iy - S}oSSY poxid S0199
"SpUN} UIWPY ddgSy Ui pasinquiial sallj| 00002 - 000°G$< sjessy paxi4 00199
elb 449Sy J0) pays abelols Jo aseyaind "sjesse Jayjo Jo aseyaind Jo ‘sa|oIyanA Jo Juawaodeldal ‘Auadoud |eas 0} suonesyipow Jolepy
P T p————— ] ) 000°0F 000'5$> WUBWANDS BUOKUOH IV 08099
quawdinba 2010 pue pajejai-eindwoo ‘sjoo} jewg| 000°Z 0000} 000°G$> juadinb3 52099
AVILNO TVLIdVD
0v6°'LE ovL'ze aviol
(-010 *ssoinias JaidooBunuud oyjo ‘waisAs Aunoss BuIp|iNg/eoKO) S991AIRS oy asuadxe 2010 osiw Jayyo| 0009 0009 SRS 3O 05€59
-sasea] Joidod pue Jejew abejsod Buipnpul ‘uswdinba Jo asea) pue juey| 0009 005 juswdinb3 - sesea g sjuey 00€S9
“ywow Jad 0g$ ¥e e Aluow uonels Buuayuo J1 (kewig soiy) exeing| 009 009 BULIONUOR 1l - BUIp|ing 'sesea1 § siuay 55259
‘Jun abeloys oy asuadxa |euay| 0VE'C 0¥0'C Buipjing - sesea g sjusy 05259
suoeol|qnd JouIsIq JaLo pue suwwoy Juad Bunuud se yons sjsoo Bunuug| 0002 0002 sjs0Q bunug G22S9
'$901jou 21jand JO $1S02 SAPNJOUI PuE ‘se0gU pue spodal Joy paiinbas AjjeBa| suogealignd jo sisoo Jousig| 000'S 000' S92ljoN |eba7 g suoledland 00259
o3 ‘sadojeua ‘ssepuiq Jaded Adoo ‘saBpupen Jauoj g yul ‘sjpuad ‘suad se yons sway a|qepuadxe apnpul sayddns soyyo| 000°S 0002 se||ddng @0 00159
-aBgysod |lew yjnq pue |1ew pasajew ‘sdweyg| 000°S 000°S abejsod 05059
ISN3IdX3 321440
00S'S2 00552 aviol
“(owsia ey Aq Apoaiip| 00071 000} uoljeanp3 alqnd 0SL¥9
papiaoid Buipuny a°1) sunodoe asuadxa Jo yoeasnno ,swesboid Jayjo ul papnjoul jou yoeagno pue swelboid uogeonpa o1gnd snoLeA
(919 'vasO ‘diysioquia YOO dy0) Sasuadl] Jojpue ‘suonduosgns ‘sdiysequisw Aiessaoau jo sisop| 000°C1 000°Ck suoldudsqns @ sdiysiaquisiy 001¥9
“(sa9y sSE|0 pUE Lo ]SIBa.) Ssasuadxa Bujuien pue uogeonps aakodws| 005 Y 005V Buiurer| GL0¥9
‘938 ‘(PS10¥ DSFH) Buneaw Jad 0 | 18 slequisw pieog o} suawAed apnjoul KioBajeo siyy ui sasuadxa Jousiq Jayio| 0008 0008 |elauag - asuadx3g Jlysiq |eoads 050¥9
ASNIdX3 1O1¥1SIa TVIO3dS
00S°€lL 000°L1 aviol
201340 aU 0} 99IAI9S Jemes pue sajyeny| 0007} 000°} IENEISE T 001€9
S0P DULICHUDN 4% SNOLIA 1 S0WO S0 ) SORISS S350 pUS sue] 108 0F 000°0% ESRETEEE R 050¢9
s3AuLN
00981 000°L2 aviol
*S9)IS JOUISIP SNOLEA J SUOREDIUNLILIOO JaWAUI JO 1500 009 000'¢ jowsju| - suojeduNWWo) 09029
51500 auoyd |j99 pUE 29140 By} e Buoyda|a} Ajpuow BuIpnjoul ‘S0IAIBS SuOREoIUNWOD Jo 0o 000'G) 000°8} 800 |eJsuey - suohedlunwwod 05029
SNOILVOINNWWO D
000°62 000°6Z aviol
-guawasinquuial BuiBpo| pue abeaji se yans ‘[asuncd PLJSIC PUE SJaquall pieoq Bulieay pue Buianob Joj sasuadxa el | 000% 000% $10}0811Q JO pieog - |pAeIL g uolepodsuel | G019
*§1S00 |9AR JAYJ0 PUE S3|OIYaA ajeAud Jo asn 1oy aouemojie ‘uonerodsuesy| 000y 000’ 00dV - [eAe1] g uoljepodsuel | 09019
[e1219WwWwod ‘Buibpo| pue sjeaw Jo §1s00 3y} Jo JuassINquial 3y} Buipnpul 0OdY 83Ul Yim pajenosse uojepodsues ||e Jo sisoD.
"$}S00 [9ARJ} JaY}0 puE S3JojyaA ajeAud Jo asn Joy| 000°8 0008 HEIS - |eAel] @ uoljepiodsuel | 05019
souemo|le ‘uoperIodsuel) [BI0JaWLI00 ‘BuiBpo| PUE S[BalL JO SIS00 B4 IO} elS O} JusWasINquIaJ 8y} Bulpn|ou| uogepodsues ||e J0 §1s00
‘saysem Jeo pue ‘saBueyp |10 ‘syoaup Ajajes [enuue ‘sBuliieiep one ‘jeny Buipnipul siieda) pue soueusjueW ‘se sajiyan Jo sison| 000°€H 000°€L siieday g S0UBUSIUIBIN "SEO - SSIIIUSA 05609
T3AVYL 8 NOILV.LHOdSNYYL
|
SLNNODJV 40 STIVLIA ANV NOILAINOS3a 14via a3ldoav INVN| i_.!t
V26202 Ad $22202 Ad INNODOV| _ LNNODOV|

19bpng $2-£202 A4 pasodold - jousiq uswabeue|y Ayjenp Jiy paiiun iseod YuoN

46 of 67



908¢LL'L L16°¢¥0°) aviol
'spafoid payijenb o} Juawasingsip 1o} ajqejiese| 002 002 Jueis weiboid 1akop ed ‘Jsaseiy| 05108
84 jSNW pawea jsala)ul |y JUnodoe yueq Jakol ayj Ul pley a|iym spuny juels) weibo.d JaAol ped || uo paules jsaisiu| pajewis3
(teak puooas 1o} %0z 1an0Aued pue ajeoojie A||ealdA)( OvY v L ¥0€'8 Jeak snojneid VSOLLY
sJeak [eJonas JOAO Pajedo||e ale yoIym (anIasay P1EsIg Ul play) sasuadxa uiwpe juelb 1oj 9%G°Z) sapinold Juels) Jakoy peD ayL wouy 19n0A11ED UIWPY Juels) weiboid Jekop |1eD
(1reakjepiul %08 21ed0ie Ajjeoid )| L0S 6% Le2'2L (SZ 1A) ulwpy weibald Jekol 11D SOLLY
sJeak [eJanas JOAO pajedo||e ale yojym ‘(anesay 14sIg Ul pley) sesuadxa/ujwpe juelb Joj %Gz sapinold Juels) Jakoy peD ayl
*Jeak |eosy snoinaud woy Janokued spuny welboid el Jakopyy ped S0L'€0L S29'LSY Janokises juel weiboid Jekon 1eD 004L¥
8YS'9ve L19°60S (G2 IA) yueio weibaid Jeho 1eD 00LLY
*|opOLU UOISSILUS-IaMO] JO [an) UBa|O ‘@Ajewsa)|e ue pue aulbua [@asalp Anp-AABay mau B Uaamjaq aoualaylp 1S00 au sJaAod A|jeoidhy
Buipuny ‘sauibua |asalp Anp-Aaeay uoissiwa-Jamo| Buiseyaind Joj saaguaoul Juelb sapnoid Juels weiboid Jakop 1/BD gyVD ayL
AWOINI LNVYO ¥IAOW THVD
JINODNI TVIO3dS ® SLNVIO
Sov'SSL-
(ulpe JueJb JuswasINqWIBJA93JIp BPNJOU| JOU S30P) %, UIWPE Pax) B BABY YdIum sweibold JUBID $Z/€Z Ad JO uongiauod(0Ly'v6
S18'6¥2-
esuadx3 $z/eZ Ad |BJoL| SL8'VES'T
awodu| $2Z/€Z Ad I830L| 000°582°2
S18'veS°T 0L2'0S€'Z ISNIdX3 ¥VINO3Y TV1IOL
000'6 000'8 aviol
= - se94 9je 0S10L
"SUOROESUEI} PJED JIP3.O LM Pajeioosse sa9) jueg| 006 L 005’9 osuadx3 pJe) ypaid 0€10L
"SJuN0o2e BupdaL LM pajenosse sas) bupjueq Jenbay| 00G'L 00S°L sabiey) @ seaHueg SZLoL
JASN3dX3 LSIUALNI B S334 MNVE
- - aviol
§)STUL 93O PUE UOJSUSd o 0} sjudwiked| - - pung sagiiqer] g3dO % uoisuad
JoUISIq 8y} 0} anp S} Ul SUORONPaP pue Sa0loAul predun - - syo-a)I\Vsee pledunsqeq peg 05169
- - sasuadx3 paziiobajeoun 00169
ISN3IdX3 SNOANVIIIOSIN
00S°€L 00S°¢l aviol
- - Buipun 4 Juswaeaiby 0L¥89
JUBIS UOIB0I Iy Ajunwwo) £ 19 gV g3VI
“fousBe auy [€90] UOE® O} PaNSs| JuUed UINg PIEPUEIS Asne 10) £¢ sepoid joursig sy | 000°ZH 000°zH SepuaDy aii4 0 594 julied uing 06299
‘we.bold ,$j0dS J0H, 9XO0L Iy S,84VD 10 GuvD 0} ybnouyy passed pue p1gsiq 3yl Aq pasljoo sea4| 005 005"} weJbold ,S}0ds JoH, OO L IV VO 00289
S3AIONIOV ¥3IHLO OL SANNA
000002 000°00L aviol
ueIO Weibold wng paquosald GYY0 JO UOKRASIUILIPE B4} YIM PALINUI SSO2 JUBLLSSINGLUIR) 109.Ip WOy pasuadxe awooul uiwpy| 000°0S 000'5Z esuadx3 - weibold Juelo uing paquosald gHVO 0€9.9
(tA%7N] - asuadxg 629.9
JUBIS UORONPIY SHOWSPOOAN SJe)S BY) JO UOHEIISIUILIPE BU) LjIM PILINOUI S}SOD JO JUBLUSSINGUIIRL J0RUIP WO PIsURUXa SUIOdU! UIWpY - (Z YA) UlWpY JUBIS) UOKONPSY SYOWSPOO djelS
¥ YA 10} (ddgsy)| 000°0€ 0000} osuadx3 - (¥ YA) UIWPY JueID ddaSy €099
weiB0id 10|id SNG [004OS [BINY BY} JO UORELSIUILIPE SL LjIM PSLINOUJ SIS0 JO JUBLUSSINGUIIRS J09.IP WOJ) Pasuadxa aUIoou] UjWpY
€ YA Joy (ddgsy)| 000°021 000°GS asuadx3 - (€ YA) ulwpy Juels ddasy 209.9
weiB0id 10|id SNg [004OS [BINY BY} JO UORELSIUILIPE SL LjIM PSLINOUJ SIS0 JO JUBLUSSINGUUIAS J09.IP WOJ) Pasuadxa aUIoou] UjWpY
SLNNODJV 40 STIVLIA ANV NOILAINOS3a 14via a3ldoav JNVN i_.!-
Y2202 Ad £2-220Z Ad LNNO2OV| LNNODOV|

19bpng $2-£202 A4 pasodold - jousiq uswabeue|y Ayjenp Jiy paiiun iseod YuoN

47 of 67



000522 000'622 VIOl
‘aAJBS9Y JOUISIA Y} Ul Pjay PuE Jeak |eosy snomaid Wwoy JanoALED Spuny Juels) anoispoop) jousig| 000°522 000°5.2 JanoAuiied weibold juels nosbueyd eA0}Spoop|| 8nIesey-y/N
"puUN4 anIasay ay) ybnouy papiroid ale pue /| /9L A< Ul PanIsoal - - weiboid juels) noabuey) anojspoop| entesey-v/N
aJam spuny Juaund ay] ‘(shuswaaibe Juswapes aoueldwod woly spuny Aq papuny Ajjeaid A} s1 weiboid JuelS) anoispoopA JouIsIg
JINOONI WV HO0¥d LNOIONVHO JA0LSAOOM
9.£'669'L 9.£'669'} IvLiOL
= = Janokiiesiueld vy3a vZeLY
"$98Nq [00ydS [euonippe G Inoge Buipuny AjeaidA ‘weibo.d| 92€°G69°L 9.£'G69'L el vy3a vZeLy
Welb ddgsy Yy premo) Juads aq [IIm Spuny v§3a 3y} Juawaaibe Japun "elwoyeD Jo (|8 Joj gYVO 0} Yd3 ayi Aq pajesole (vy3a)
10V UOINPaY SUOISSIW (98310 S,94 VD JO |[e SIBSIUIWpe JouIsIQ 84 ‘ L0~V 3A-12-O PUB L0-YHIA-6L-O ‘suawaaiby juelo ybnouyy
JWOONI LNVYO TvH3a3d va3a
000°98L"F 000°LSE'Y VL0l
"spaloid payijenb o} juawasingsip 10 3|qejieae| 000" 000°L weiboid juelo (¥ YA) dd9Sy 1sese| 21208
84 }SNW pawea Jsa.ajul ||y ‘JUNodde [eloueul (¥ YA) ddEaSY 8 Ul PlRY 3)iym spunyjueld (¥ MA) ddESy uo pautes jsassjul pajewns3
"Juncode [erueuy (¥ ¥A) ddESY @Y Ul pley pue Jeak |easy snomaid woyy anokued (¥ YA) ddgsy| 000681 Y - JanoAlied (y YA) wesboid Jojid sng |00udS |esny 8CZELY
‘S]OLASIP [00YOS [BJN JO) SBSN( |00UOS 000°0SE'Y (7 YA) weiboid Jojid sng |00Yds [einy L TAYA4
10y Juelb ¢ 1ea A (dd8Sy) weiboid 10jid SNg |00Y0S |BINY SPIM-B1E}S BY) SI9)SUIWPE Y uisiq 3y} ‘Juawealby eld gyvo e ybnouy )
FWOINI (¥ ¥A) WVHD0¥d LOId SNE TOOHIS Tvany
00092€°2 005'90%'0L viol
spaloid payiienb o} Juawasingsip 1o} 3jqeliere| 000"} 005} weiboid juers (¢ YA) ddaSy 1saisy| 91208
84 }SNW pawea jsaJajul ||y ‘JUNodde [eloueul (€ YA) ddEaSY 84 Ul PlRY 3jiym spunyjueld (€ ¥A) ddESy uo pautes jsassjul pajewns3
Juncode [erueuy (€ ¥A) ddESY ay Ul pjay pue Jeak |easy snomaid woyy janohued (€ YA) ddasy| 000'6LE°L 000'S0%'01 JanoALIED (€ YA) Weibold Jolid shg [00Ydg |einy L2ELY
"(ddasy o) paydde juesb vy3Q Joj spunyjoslodd| - - (€ YA) weibold 10lid sng [00YdS |einy L2eLy
yolew aje}s s,84v0 S8PNPUI YOIYM ‘00055 81$ O JUNOWE (e[ Ul pUOkaq Pasea.ou| Sem UOEIO|(E) SPLSIP [00YOS BN 10} S9SN |00UdS
Joj Juelb ¢ Jea A (ddgsy) weiboid 10)1d Sng [00Y0S [BINY BPIM-D1e)S By} SIaJS U ILIPe JouisI 8y} ‘Juaweal by Juelo gyvD e ybnouyy
JWOINI (€ HA) NVHOO0¥Ud LOTId SNE TOOHIS TviNy
. 000°L00'S vLiOL
'spaloid payljenb o} Juswasingsip 10} Bqejiene| - 000°L weiboid Jueio (Z YA) dd8sy 1seseyy| 61208
84 }SNW pawes JsaJajul ||y JUNOdJE [eloUBUY (Z YA) ddESY 34 Ul PlRY 3iym spunyjueld (Z ¥A) ddESy uo pautes jsassjul pajewns3
Junod2e [epUeUY (Z YA) ddESY 8Y Ul pley pue Jeak |edsy snoina.d woy Janokiued (z ¥A) ddasy| - 000°000'S Janohiied (z YA) weiboid Jojid sng |00uds |esny 9ZELY
'S]OLSIP [00YDS [BJN JOj Sasnq [ooyds| - - (Z "A) weiboid jolid sSng [00YdS [eIny 9zeLY
1o} Juelb z Jea A (ddgSy) weiboid 0jid sng [00Y0S [eINy BpIM-aje)s By} SIalsUILIPe Jousig 3y} ‘Juawaaiby Jueio gyy0 e ybnoiyy
JINOONI (Z ¥A) NVHOO0¥d LOTId SNE TOOHOS TviNy
009°122° §95'812C IvVLiOL
“spun4 aBIey2INg AWQ £268Y U0 pauea jsasaul pajewns3| 002 002 spund ebieyding AWQ €268V 1oy 00208
Jeak [2osly snojnaid Woly JoAokLeD) spund abieyaing ANG szegy| 00V 9681 G9E'e68’) 18/0kijed spun g eb1eyding AWQ €268V 0018¥
“uopoIpstInl s LISIA aY} Ul BjoIyeA Jad z¢ [leuonippe| 000°SZE 000°62¢ spun 8bieyding AWQ €268V 001L8%
UE 8A}223) 0} JouIs|d 8Y} S9ZUOUINE YoIum ‘6221 DS8H 03 juensind sjoafoid juesb Joy spung abieyoing AWQ £269Y Pepino.d ajels
JWOINI IDUVHIUNS AINQ £268Y
8€Z°LST AT VLiOL
"(xeak puooas 10} %0z @1eo0je A|jeadR)[ €op LE €0P'LE JanoAued uiwpy (JousIa-HNW) anesay ojels GSELY
sieak [e1aAas a0 pajedo|le 8. Yolym ‘(BAlesay Jouisiq Ul play) sasuadxajujwpe jJuelb 10} 96z | SapiAcid Juelo aAIasay BiElS Byl
(1eak |equui %08 @1e00|e KeodAy)| - - ulwpy (30uISIg-HINW) anIesay ajels SGELY
sieak [BI9ASS JOAO PBJedO)[e B.I. YOIym ‘(2AIasay Joussiq Ul play) sasuadxauiwpe juelb 1o} 9,62 | sapincid JuRID BAIRS3Y BJE)S YL
‘jeak [eosy snoinaid wouy JoAokLed spuny weiboid Juels) ansesay ayels ayy | S€8'61C GE8'6lLC Janokuiied Juers (JoIsIa-HNN) dAIesay djels 0SELY
“spaloid by pue by-uou| - - Jues9 (OIIsIa-HNW) enIesay ajels 0S€LY
‘Peo.-40o diA piemo) Buob Apussaid spuny mau Lpim weibold ¥IGNIL 2 o3 Juam Buipuny Ajleniu| “sjoulsip Jie yym diysieuped ul saguold
ajeis spoddng “(1OLISIQ-NINN) dAIBSRY dJEYS Se 0} pauajal ‘weiboid JAOW 18D ay) UIyIm % G pajeso]jeun ay) wouy Buipuny uelb gyvo
JWOONI LNVHO (LOIMLSIC-ILTNN) SANISIY JLVLS
|
SLNNODOV 40 STIVL3A ANV NOLLAINOS3a 1avaa a3Ldoav INVN| UIGANN|
$2-€20Z Ad £2-2202 Ad LNNO2OV| LNNOJOV|

19bpng $2-£202 A4 pasodold - jousiq uswabeue|y Ayjenp Jiy paiiun iseod YuoN

48 of 67



8€2'1SZ 8€2'1SZ avioL

Jeak Y0S€89
“Jeak |eosy Ixau pasuadxa aq 0} ‘aAJasaY JOUISIQ Ul PRy pue Jeak 1xau 0} JOAOALED 9%0Z JO ULPE JAI9SaY JjelS IXau 0} JOAOALED UIWPY (JOLISIQ-BINN) SAI9sY Bje)S
€0¥'LE €0v'LE Jeak snoinaid Y0S€89
“Jeak |eosly siy) Ul pasuadxa aq 0} ‘aAIasay PIASIQ Ul play ‘Jeak [eosl snolAald Woy JOAOALED 9%0Z JO ULPE aAJasay ajels wouy JOAOALED UIWPY (JOUISIG-BINW) oAI8SaY d)elS
"(9suadx3 200 puE Syeuag B SaLe(es b'9) SJUNCODE SNOLIBA Uj}abpnq bupesado oy payayal| - E ulwpy (OL3sIa-HNW) dAIesay dlels V0S€£89
S| asuadxa sIy| ‘PaAIsdal spuny uaym Jeak [eqiul pasuadxa si 9% 08 aiaym ‘sasuadxajuiwpe Juelb 1o} 9% 6z | sapiroid ulwpy aAIasay ajels
Junodoe [epueul JaAop |JeD ul pley pue Jeak [easy xau o} JanoAued spuny weibold anlesay aleis| G€8'612 G£8'61LC JanoAuied Juers (JoLysig-HIn) dAIesay djels 0S£89
“sjuaid|oal 0} J0B1UOO Japun papinoid spuny 103(0Jd/saAgUBOUI LD ansesay aelg| - UeID (LISIC-HIN) SMSsaY lels 05£89
ISNIdXT INVYO (LOIYLSIA-ILTNN) IAYISIY ALVLS
908°CLL’L LLB'EVO0L IviolL
lad lzad’ Jeak V00189
‘Jeak |eosy Jxau pasuadxe aq 0) ‘aAIasay JoUIS| Ul PIBY Jeak IXau 0} JOAOALED 9%0Z JO UjWpEe JuelS) JOKOW HED Xau 0} Janohuied uiwpy juels) weibad 1efopy 1ed
1066 y0e°8 1eak snoineid 00189
“Jeak |easy siy ul pasuadxa aq 0} ‘aAIRsay JoUISIa Ul play ‘Jeak [easy snolaald woly JAAOALIED 9%,0Z JO UILPE JURIS) JaKoW peD. wouy Jenokiied uiwpy juels weiboid 1efopy |1eD
"(esuadxg 20y0 pue syjeuag g selefes ‘6°9) sjunoooe snouea ul 3ebpng Bupesado ay ul papayal| 909°6E G8.L°LS ulwpy juels weibald Jakop 11D V00189
s| asuadxa siy ] "(s140}-G) wua) yuelb Bunnp sasuadxa ujwpe Joujw Janod Alybnou o) (Jeak puooas 9,0z ‘Jeak [eniul %08 AlleoadA)
sJeak [BJaASS JOAO P2JEJO|[B B8 YoIYM ‘(aM18say JoLsIq Ul pay) sesuadxa/uiupe Jueub Joj 96z sapinold Juels Jakoy peg ayy
JUNOOoE [eoUBUY JAKOW HED Ul pjay pue Jeak |easy 1xau 0} Janokiied spuny juels) welbold Jakopyy ped - - Janohused jueio weibold Jahon 11D 00189
sju1dipaJ 0} J0B1UOD Japun papinoid spuny Jo9fo.id/saARuSOU| JueIS WeiBolg Jakop peo| €58°6¥0 L 2Yy'e96 jueio weiboid Jehon 11D 00189
ASNIdX3 INVHO ¥IAON VO
ISNIdX3 TVIOIAdS ? SLNVYO
0zzZ'ovv'LL 959°.v2'se JINODNI TVIO3dS ? SLINVYHO 1V1OL
00z'L2¢ - aviol
‘sj09fo.d pay)ienb o} Juswasingsip 1o} a|qe|ieA. aq ysnw| 00Z - weiboid Juels ¥YIWHY4 ‘1sele| 50208
pawes jsaseu |y Junodde [ejoueul welbold ¥IWHY4 8y} Ul piay aiym spuny weibold Juess YWYV Uo pau.es jsalejul pajewis3
- - 1eak snoineid S0Z.LY
Jeak |eosy siy) pasuadxa aq 0} ‘aAlesay JoulsIQ Ul pley ‘Jeak [eosyy snonaid woly JaA0ALIED UlWpPe 906 Sapno.d Ul ¥IWNHYL YL wouy Janokuied uiwpy weiboid yueld YIWHY4
'SasUadXa SAIJELISIUILPE 10} %6 SapInoid JUBID NIWNYH 2yl 000°22 - ulwpy weibold jueld YIWdv4 S0CLY
JUN0ooe YIWNY 34} Ul poy pue Jeak |eosy snomaid woy JanoAueo spuny wesbosd e ¥IWyvY4 eyl - 1anokiied weibold Juel HIWHV 002y
"spun ABojouypa L ajd1yaA| 000°00€ - weiboid juel YIWHVS 00ZL¥

PUE [on4 9|qEMBUay PUE SAJRUIS}Y ‘SpuUNnd JuawaAoidw Ailend Iy ‘4¥OO Aq papund "UOREASIUIWPE %6 YIM Sjouisip e g| Buowe
J|ds uol||iw g°'g$ sajesojie Ajlenu| ‘sadA} afoid [euonippe im weiboid Jako |Jed ay) o} sejuis wesboud Juswaoedal uawdinbs
[einynoube apwaiess v ‘weiboud Juelb (I Y-) SuondNpay uoissiwI Joj sainsealy Juawsoelday [eJmnouby Buipund s gyvO!

JNOONI NVHOO0Hd ¥IWAV

- 000°S aviol
‘gj09fo.d paylienb o) Juawasingsip 10} a|qejieA. aq isnw| - - weibold JuelS S)OWSPOOAN ‘ISaIaju| 01208
pauJea jsaiajul ||y JNOJJE [BPUBUY SYOWSPOOA BUj Ul P3Y 3|iym spuny weibo.d UoRaNpay 8)O0WSPOOAA UO PauLes Jsalajul pajewls3
- 000°S lanohiied oleLy
‘JUNOOOE Y OUWSPOOAN BIBIS By} U| pPlay pue Jeak [easy snojaald woy Jarokued spuny welboid juels) ayowspoop) ajes weiboid Jueis) uoloNpey SNOWSPOOA 2JelS
‘Bujpuny aimny yim| - - weiboid Juel9 uoRoNpay a)OWSpOOop jels oLeLy

jo1id Jeak Z pajew§s3 "uiseq Jie os|e pue JouIsIQ O} UOIEIO|[E [BRIU] SPUMN JHOO WM SJUBLESBAU| Sjew| D lwoyleD Aq pajuswaldw|
"'VOOdVO WM UORBUIPIOOD Ul soUsIp Jie Aq pausisiulwpe pue gyv) Aq pajuswaidwi i weibold juesy uojonpay a4OoWspoo Slels

JNOODNI WVHO0¥d NOILLONAIY IMONSAOOM 3ILVLS

|
SLNNODOV 40 S1IV13a ANV NOILIN0S3a 1avaa a3Ldoav IWVN| FEEIL|
Y2202 Ad £22202 Ad INNO2OV| _ INNOJJV|

19bpng $2-£202 A4 pasodold - jousiq uswabeue|y Ayjenp Jiy paiiun iseod YuoN

49 of 67



0

asuadx3g Juelo £Z/ZZ A4 1|01 | 0ZZ°'9vv'LL
aWOdU| JUBLD $Z/SZ Ad IBIOL| 0ZZ'9VP'LL
0zZZ'9v¥'LL 959°.v2'se ISNIdX3 TVIOIdS B SINVYHO TV.LIOL
00z'L2¢ - VLol
“9A1983Y JOLISIQ Ul PIOY PUE Jeak (2981 X8U 0} JOAOALIED %0 JO UIWPE JuelD yIWyv4| 00S€} - Jeak xau 0} RACALED UILPY HIWNY V0+089
“Jeak |eosy sy} u| pasuadxa aq 0} ‘aAlasay JousIq Ul p|ay Jeak |[eosyy snojaaid woly JOAOKLED 9,06 JO UIWPE JUBID ¥INN YL - - Jeak snoineid woyy Jenokued uiwpy YIWNVYH VvOr089
“(esuadx3 2010 pue sjysuag @ seuefes ‘6'a) sjuncooe snolea ul jabpng Bunesado ay papaye.| 00S'EL = ulwpy ¥3Wdv4d Y0¥089
S| 9suadxe S|y ‘PaAIS0a. SpUNy UBYM Jeak 1s1y Ul pasuadxe ujwpe 906 aJauym ‘sasuadxajuiwpe 1o} %6 sepircld welboid Jueld ¥IWNYH
JUN0ooE |erueUY Weibold JueID YIWH YL Ul PRy pue Jeak [eosy IXau 0} JOAOALEO Spuny Jueid ¥IWNYLH| - Janokises weibold YIWYV4 0v089
‘sjua1dioa. 0} 10e[4U0D Japun papiacid spuny pafoid/saajuacul UBID ¥IWNYL 00Z°00€ - welbold YIWNV4 0089
ISNIdXT WVHOO0NUd HIWHVS
- 000°S IviOL
"JUNCODE [BIOUBULY 8)OWSPOOAA SJE)S Ul p|ay pue Jeak [eosly }xau 0} JOAOALIED Spunj JUBIS) @XOWSPOOAA ajelS - - 1an0f11ed weibold uojonpay 8)0oWsSpoop) dlelS 08089
‘sjua|dpaJ o} Juawaaibe Japun papiAoid SaARUSOUI JURISD BHOWSPOOM ajels| - 000'S weiboid uoionpay S4OWSPOOM SjelS 08089
ISNIdXT WVHO0Ud NOILONAIY INOWSAOOM 3LVLS
000'S.2 000522 IviOL
“anJasaY JOUISIQ Ul PIoY pue JanoALed spuny weiBold 1noabueyp anojspoop jousia| 000'522 000'SZ} Jonokued weiboid ;nosbuey aAojspoom 52089
"guaidi0a) 0} JuswaalBbe Japun papiAc.d SBARUSOUI JUBIS) SA0ISPOOA JOUISI] 000700} weJboid nosbueyd aA0}Spoom G.089
ISNIdXT WV HO0¥d LNOIONVHO JAOLSAOOM
9.£'669°L 9.£'669°L qviol
- - Jenokiedjuels vy3a 0v¥£89
"SpUNy SYA ddESY Yim Buoje Juawaabe Juelb ay) 0} Buipiodde JuelS ddaSy ayi Uiy Juads st Buipuny juels vy3a| 92£°G69°L 9/€'G69'} el vy3a 0¥£89
INV¥9 Tv¥3034 va3a
000981 ¥ 00071LSEY VL0l
Juncode [erueul (¥ YA) ddESy Ul Pley pue Jeak [easy xau 0} JaA0ALED spuny juel (¥ MA) ddasy| - - Janokiied (y YA) weboid Jojid sng |00UdS |einy 82£89
*sjua]djoa. 0} J0R1U0D Japun papiAoid spuny Joafoid/sanpuaoul el (¥ YA) ddasyd| 000°981 Y 000°1SE'Y (Y1) webold 10lid sng 00ydS [einy 82€£89
ISNIdX3 (¥ ¥A) WVEO0¥d LOTId SNE TOOHIS Tvany
000°9.2€°L 005°90¥°01L IviOL
Junodde [erueuy (€ YA) dd8SY Ul pley pue Jeak [edsyy Ixau 0} JoAoALED spuny Jueld (¢ YA) ddasy| - - JanoAuied (g YA) weboid Jojid sng |00yYdS [einy 12£89
“sjua1da. 0} Joe1U0D Japun papinoid spurny Jefoid/sannuaoul el (g YA) dd8SH| 000°92€°L 00S°90¥'0} (€ YA) weboid jolid sng |00yog |esny 12€89
ISNIdX3 (€ WA WVHO0¥d LOTId SNE TOOHIS Tvany
. 000°L00°S IvioL
JUNOJJE [BUBUY (Z ¥A) ddESY Ul Pjey pue Jeak [eds)y Ixau 0} JOAOALED spuny Jueld (z YA) ddasy| - - Janohuied (Z YA) weboid J0jid sng |00YdS [einy 92£89
“sjua1doa. 0} }0eAU0 Japun papiacid spury palfoidsennuacul uel (Z YA) ddasy| - 000°L00'S (Z YA) webold jolid sng |00ydg |einy 92£89
ISNIdX3 (2 9A) WVED0¥d LO1ld SNg 100HJS 1vanyd
009°1222 695°812°C IviOL
JUN020E [eUBUY £268Y Ul P2y PUE Jeak [e951 Xau 0} Janokies spuny Jueio ezegy| 009'+28'H 595’818} Jenokizes spung ebieyding AWQ €268V 65089
‘weiboud Juess) weiboid Jakopy peo ayy Joy spuny| 000°00% 000°00¥ spung sbieyding AWQ £269Y 55089
yojew Apeak apinoid osje spung abeyoing AWQ £268YV ‘sjuaidioas o} papinoid spuny joafoid/sanguasul Juess abieyaing AWQ £268Y
ISNIJXT SANNL IDUVYHOIUNS AINA €268V
|
SLNNODJV 40 S1IVL3d ANV NOILAINOS3a 1avaa q3Ldoav INVN| UIGWNN|
$2-€20Z Ad £2-220C Ad LNNO2OV| LNNOJOV|

19bpng $2-£202 A4 pasodold - jousiq uswabeue|y Ayjenp Jiy paiiun iseod YuoN

50 of 67



Agenda ltem: 8
Closed Session



Agenda ltem: 9



North Coast Unified

Air Quality Management District
707 L Street, Eureka, CA 95501
(707) 443-3093
www.ncuagmd.org

TO: North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District Board
FROM: Brian Wilson, APCO
SUBJECT: APCO Report

DATE: May 18, 2023

ACTION REQUESTED: Accept and File

The following information is provided as a summary of items of interest to the Board and

Dis

trict. Staff solicits and appreciates any feedback concerning these items or other

items of interest from the Board.

1.

Status on District Pension & Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Liability
Trust Fund

At the Governing Board meeting in April, the Board was provided a presentation on
the District's Pension & Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Liabilities, and
approved Pension and OPEB Liability Funding Policies. The next step would be for
the Board to choose a Section 115 Trust Fund Administrator (PARS, CalPERS, etc.)
and choose an investment strategy for transferred funds. District staff is working on
bringing a representative from the Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) to
discuss trust fund administrator options and possible investment strategies to
present at the next Governing Board meeting.

New Statewide CAL FIRE Burn Permit System

Beginning in May, Cal Fire launched a statewide online burn permit application to
streamline the process of requesting a CAL FIRE burn permit (see attached press
release). The permits are for any projects located within the State Responsibility
Area (SRA) and other jurisdictions where CAL FIRE has the authority to require
them. The burn permits available online include: a) residential (dooryard LE-6A)
burning, b) general burning, and c) Broadcast burning. Once an application is
submitted, a CAL FIRE representative has 10 days to respond review/issue the
permit and a site visit may be required. The District's burn permit is valid year-
round, whereas the CAL FIRE permit is required during Fire Season or issued for
short durations.

53 of 67



3. CARB Approves Advanced Clean Fleets Rule (Accelerating Heavy Duty ZEVs)

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) just approved the Advanced Clean
Fleets regulation to phase out the sales of medium and heavy-duty combustion
trucks in California by 2036 (see attached press release) and approved first-in-the-
nation regulation to limit train pollution. The new rule puts the state on a path toward
the goal of fully transitioning the medium and heavy-duty trucks to zero-emissions
technology by 2045, providing major fleet operators, including state, local and
federal government fleets, with different options to begin transitioning next year. For
example: drayage trucks (i.e. big rigs), local delivery and government fleets must
transition by 2035, and garbage trucks must be zero-emission by 2039. All other
vehicles covered by the regulation must be zero-emission by 2042.

4. American Lung Association (ALA) State of the Air Report

Recently, the American Lung Association (ALA) issued its State of the Air 2023”
report in which “report cards” are given for major areas throughout the US (see
attached chart and local article). The report cards have been an annual event by the
ALA for many years now. The report cards grade 726 counties in the US which
operate ambient particulate and ozone monitors over a three-year period. The
grade is weighted and seeks to reflect the number of days the area exceeds AQI
Moderate level for 24-hr PM2.5 averages and 8-hr Ozone levels.

Typically, the only county in the North Coast Unified AQMD that is able to receive a
grade (i.e., there is regulatory monitoring data available) is Humboldt County, which
is usually a grade of “A” for both High Ozone Days and High Particle Pollution Days
(see the 2016 ALA report).

A key point to note in regards to the ALA grade/report is that the grade represents a
much more conservative and restrictive methodology which uses AQI (Air Quality
Index) for reporting daily air quality. This is separate from the existing health-based
state and federal ambient air quality standards (AAQS) and assessment basis for
attainment designations. Because the ALA report bases its grades in part on the
AQl, rather than the AAQS, it is possible to receive an “F” on the report, while still
meeting all the AAQS requirements. The ALA report includes data on days
influenced by wildfire smoke, whereas these impacts are not included with regulatory
data.

5. Staff Training, Workshops, & Symposiums

Here is a brief list of the main training staff has participated since the last Board
Meeting:

e CalPERS - Public Agency PEPRA Contribution Rates - Penny Costa & Erin
Squire

e Govlnvest - 2023 OPEB & Pension Insider - Penny Costa

e CARB - FP118: Methane Leak Detection Equipment: Part A & B - David
Huffman

54 of 67



INTERAGENCY NEWS RELEASE

California DepartmentofForestry andFire Protection
Humboldt- Del Norte Unit

And
North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District
oA DEEA T CONTACT: CAL FIRE RELEASE April 25, 2023
Humboldt-Del Norte Unit  DATE:
C. (707) 726-1285

CAL FIRE BURN PERMITS REQUIRED MAY 1. 2023

Effective May 1, 2023, the CAL FIRE Humboldt - Del Norte Unit requires both Standard and Non-
Standard Burn Permit holders in State Responsibility Areas, to also obtain a CAL FIRE Burn
Permit. A North Coast Unified Air Quality Management District (NCUAQMD) burn permit is still
required year-round and contains the permittee’s designated burn zone.

The CAL FIRE Humboldt — Del Norte Unit wants to emphasize the importance of following all burning
regulations and ensuring controlled burns do not escape and become wildfires. Recent precipitation
has helped bring needed moisture, but light fuels can dry quickly when conditions are dry and windy.

CAL FIRE has transitioned to a new online process to obtain burn permits.
e Burn permits are available online at: www.burnpermit.fire.ca.gov
o All applications for burn permits must be submitted online.
« Anyone without internet access may contact their nearest CAL FIRE station for assitance.
e Residential Burn permits
o No site visit is required.
o An Air Quality Standard permit is also required.
o Burning can only occur on Permissive Burn Days as determined by calling NCUAQMD.
o General Project and Broadcast Burn permits
o May require a site visit.
o Allow ten days for application review and site visit as needed.
o An Air Quality Non-Standard permit is also required.
o Burning can only occur on Permissive Burn Days as determined by calling the NCUAQMD
or by exemption.

CAL FIRE Stations
Fortuna Headquarters (707) 725-4413

Garberville Station (707) 923-2645
Weott Station (707) 946-2215
Trinidad Station (707) 677-3638

Crescent City Station (707) 464-5526

NCUAQMD burn permits are required year-round and can be obtained on-line at www.ncugamd.org
or in person at 707 L Street, Eureka (M-F 9am to Noon and 1pm to 4pm). For more information
contact the NCUAQMD by calling (707) 443-3093.

HiH
55 of 67



/| CALIFORNIA

AIR RESOURCES BOARD

California approves groundbreaking regulation that
accelerates the deployment of heavy-duty ZEVs to
protect public health

Advanced Clean Fleets establishes world'’s first mandate to end combustion truck
sales

DATE April 28, 2023
RELEASE NUMBER 23-13

CONTACTS

Dave Clegern

Office of Communications
dave.clegern@arb.ca.gov

(916) 717-9652

CATEGORIES
Topics On-Road Heavy-Duty Vehicles

Programs Advanced Clean Fleets, Advanced Clean Trucks

SACRAMENTO - The California Air Resources Board (CARB) today approved a
first-of-its-kind rule that requires a phased-in transition toward zero-emission
medium-and-heavy duty vehicles.

Known as Advanced Clean Fleets, the new rule helps put California on a path
toward accomplishing Gov. Gavin Newsom’s goal of fully transitioning the trucks that
travel across the state to zero-emissions technology by 2045. The new rule is
expected to generate $26.6 billion in health savings from reduced asthma attacks,
emergency room visits and respiratory illnesses. Furthermore, fleet owners will save
an estimated $48 billion in their total operating costs from the transition through
2050.

56 of 67



While trucks represent only 6% of the vehicles on California’s roads, they account
for over 35% of the state’s transportation generated nitrogen oxide emissions and a
guarter of the state’s on-road greenhouse gas emissions. California communities
that sit near trucking corridors and warehouse locations with heavy truck traffic have
some of the worst air in the nation. California is set to invest almost $3 billion
between 2021 — 2025 in zero-emission trucks and infrastructure. This investment is
a part of a $9 billion multi-year, multi-agency zero-emissions vehicle package to
equitably decarbonize the transportation sector that was agreed upon by the
Governor and the Legislature in 2021.

“We have the technology available to start working toward a zero-emission future
now,” said CARB Chair Liane Randolph. “The Advanced Clean Fleets rule is a
reasonable and innovative approach to clean up the vehicles on our roads and
ensure that Californians have the clean air that they want and deserve. At the same
time, this rule provides manufacturers, truck owners and fueling providers the
assurance that there will be a market and the demand for zero-emissions vehicles,
while providing a flexible path to making the transition toward clean air.”

“California continues to lead by example with first-of-its-kind standards to slash air
pollution and toxics from heavy-duty trucks,” said Yana Garcia, California’s
Secretary for Environmental Protection. “Where you live, work, or go to school
should not determine the quality of the air you breathe. The Advanced Clean Fleets
rule brings California one step closer to addressing historic inequities that have
placed some communities at the epicenter of environmental pollution and the
resulting health consequences, while accelerating our transition to a zero-emission
future.”

Under the new rule, fleet owners operating vehicles for private services such as last-
mile delivery and federal fleets such as the Postal Service, along with state and local
government fleets, will begin their transition toward zero-emission vehicles starting
in 2024. The rule includes the ability to continue operating existing vehicles through
their useful life. Due to the impact that truck traffic has on residents living near
heavily trafficked corridors, drayage trucks will need to be zero-emissions by 2035.
All other fleet owners will have the option to transition a percentage of their vehicles
to meet expected zero-emission milestones, which gives owners the flexibility to
continue operating combustion -powered vehicles as needed during the move
toward cleaner technology. The flexibility is intended to take into consideration the
available technology and the need to target the highest-polluting vehicles. For

57 of 67



example, last mile delivery and yard trucks must transition by 2035, work trucks and
day cab tractors must be zero-emission by 2039, and sleeper cab tractors and
specialty vehicles must be zero-emission by 2042.

@ CREATING A ZERO-EMISSIONS WCRLD

HEAVY DUTY PROGRESS POMEREY £ V0 127 VL CELELCRETECaLE

rﬁ‘l‘”ﬂﬂh‘qm
i3 g™ L
1-4—‘ L UERE S TR

The rule also allows fleet owners to receive exemptions based on available
technology to make sure fleet owners continue to replace their older polluting trucks
with ones that have the cleanest engines in the nation. There are already about 150
existing medium- and heavy-duty zero-emission trucks that are commercially
available in the U.S. today.

The Advanced Clean Fleets rule includes an end to combustion truck sales in 2036,
a first-in-the-world requirement that factors in public commitments to transition to
zero-emission technology by truck manufacturers, potential cost savings for fleets,
and accelerated benefits for California communities. The rule also provides fleet
owners flexibility and provides regulatory certainty to the heavy-duty market.

58 of 67



An analysis of the sales and purchase requirements estimates that about 1.7 million
zero-emission trucks will hit California roads by 2050. To support the needed
infrastructure and services to make this transition, agencies across government
have committed to the Zero-Emission Infrastructure Joint Agency Statement of
Intent. For more than a decade, California has been making investments in
infrastructure and to support the development and adoption of zero-emissions
vehicles. The Joint Statement of Intent lays out the basic tools for direct
communication and collaboration between CARB, the California Energy
Commission, the California State Transportation Agency, California Transportation
Commission, California Department of Transportation, the Department of General
Services and the Governor’s Office of Economic and Business Development. These
agencies will plan, develop, deploy and help to fund the extensive network of
electric charging and hydrogen stations required to help get California to zero-
emissions by 2045.

As part of the vote, board members directed staff to coordinate with relevant state
agencies on how non-fossil biomethane from sources related to the

state’s wastewater and food waste diversion requirements under SB1383 can be
used in hard-to-decarbonize sectors as part of the transition, and to report to the
Board, by the end of 2025, any actions needed to accomplish the transition.

Advanced Clean Fleets follows the 2020 adoption of the Advanced Clean Trucks
rule, which put in place a requirement for manufacturers to increase the sale of zero-
emission trucks and its waiver was recently granted by the Biden Administration’s
Environmental Protection Agency.

California’s ambitious efforts to provide cleaner air are especially important for those
living in areas with heavy truck traffic, who often are low-income residents or
communities of color that bear a disproportionate burden from the impacts of
pollution and climate change. Fleet owners will also see benefits from the new
regulations, including lower operating and maintenance expenses that can offset the
initial purchase costs. Today, in some instances, the total cost of ownership for zero-
emissions trucks may be comparable to those of fuel-powered options, without
factoring in available state and federal financial incentives.

59 of 67



Financial Assistance

More information

CARB's mission is to promote and protect public health, welfare, and ecological
resources through effective reduction of air pollutants while recognizing and
considering effects on the economy. CARB is the lead agency for climate change
programs and oversees all air pollution control efforts in California to attain and
maintain health-based air quality standards.

Source URL: https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/news/california-approves-groundbreaking-
regulation-accelerates-deployment-heavy-duty-zevs-protect

60 of 67



SSed g9 4 09 0 0 8 9 0 oL 0 0 € ojusg ueg
ssed Ll E| L8l I 0 4 ce E SLl 0 € 8y ojualleldes
lled 6¢l 4 G'Gl 0 0 Fa 9€ 4 g'gclL oL 68 cee SpPISIBAIY
Iled g'ol 4 8'¢cc 3 3 8¢ 44 ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd sewn|d
Ssed 70l 4 8.1 0 0 €d 6l | 0°L¢ 0 8 69 182e|d
Ssed L 4 06 0 0 c 14 4 8'6L c 6 44 abueiQ
SSed L'6 4 8°0¢ 0 14 e vl 4 Z'Le L L LS EPEASN
ONI ONI E| 09 0 0 8 9 9| oL 0 0 € edeN
Ssed 0L 4 Gl 0 4 6 ] v 00 0 0 0 Aaisjuop
ONI ONI = 8'¢cy 8l oL 1Z £c ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd Ouo
ssed 6L g 09l 0 0 9l 14 4 ¢9l 0 e 14% padlaiy
ssed Al 4 €€l Z 3 cl gl A4 0’0 0 0 0 ouopusiy
ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONa ONd 4 S8l 0 L 14 esoduep
ssed el d (004 0 L 14 1% d €0 0 0 L uLen
lled oelL | (A4 0 L Le (0] 4 l'ce 0 9 65 elopey
led o€l E| Z'0c 0 J el 6¢€ Ei ocLl 9l o8 Gl sajebuy soT
ssed €9 d £ 0 0 14 L Y 00 0 0 0 e
l'ed 6'Gl E| 8'6¢ 0 0 ee g8 4 5’6l 0 € 1) sBury
led 8Ll E| G'LS 0 c 6¢ 0L E| 2’98 3 8¢ L0Z ulsy
SSed ¥'8 | 0'8¢ 9 8 e ce 4 €9 0 0 6l oAyl
Ssed oLl d A 0 0 I 8 = 0°LL 0 14 St [euaduw|
- SSEd 7L =] L0 0 0 0 4 Y 00 0 0 0 ploquinH
ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd Y 00 0 0 0 uus|o
led €6l 4 0°0S 0 G l44 L/ 4 0'%S L 9l 9EL oussl
ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd 4 191 0 9 Ly opeJoq |3
Ssed (5] 4 g8 0 0 L 6 4 ey 0 0 €l E]S0D BJUOD
Ssed 7’0l 4 G'6l 0 0 e 8l v 00 0 0 0 Eesn|oo
ssed 6'8 E Lel 4] 0 9L vl El ge 0 L 6 seloneeD
SsSed vll E| c'0c L c cc Le 4 L9 0 Z Ll anng
ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd a A 0 L 8 Jopewy
Ssed 8'8 E| '8 0 I 0l 6 E 0’8 0 4 \Z epaulely
jeq anjep 9peln bBay uoosely sjding pey obuelg speln bBay a|ding pay abueig Aunon

| ssed uBisaqg 16 16

|enuuy INOH ¥
1202-610Z SAeq uonnjjod sjonaed ybiy 1202-610Z SAeq auozp ybiH

ejuiojijed

LFod33 WV €z

61 of 67



+£€=4'2€1T=0 020 =0"60€0=9 00 =V :SMO|I0L SE 3IE S3pEID ()
"AlLNoD Jey ul pe1os||oo 10U si wegnjjod Jenonled 1Byl Uo BlEp JeU) se1ealpul ONJ (€)
*AUNoo 1Bl UILIM Siesk a31y) oy [o uonlod awos Jol ejep Buloyuow sjsdwoalt ssleaipul ONI (2)
‘sbelaar sy Bune|nojes pue uootew = ¢'7 ‘e|dind = o'z ‘pal = '} ‘ebuelo = 0"} "2’ ‘pJepue)s
paubisse ay) Aq [eAs] yore Jo swins al Bulfidninw (L.Z0z-6102) BIBP [eAS] [ENPIAIPUI JO sieak aauy) 2y Buippe Ag paalisp sem abeloae pajybiom syl (L)

1SSI0N
ONI ONI O gl 0 0 3 € 3 i 0 0 S OIOA
$8€d 62 a Lz 0 0 Z G | Z'el 0 € gt EINUSA
ONd ONd Nd ONd ONd ONd ONd ONd d o'e 0 0 6 suwnion |
e4 2Ll E! L'l 3 L L 69 4 Z2'c6 4 158 0ze 8JeinL
ssed 86 | £ee 0 0 g9t ol E| 8'0L 0 3 le eueyal
led L'el E| 06l L L Bl vZ E| gL 0 € 61 Jepng
led o€l 4 g'eg 0 c 6l A4 4 ¢0g 0 £ 2] shejsiuels
ONJ i E| ee 0 C 9 I v 00 0 0 0 BUIOUDS
ssed L6 E| 'S 0 8 g 9 d £C 0 0 A ouejog
$sed S0l E| 0'9¢ L Z ge 6l A4 00 0 0 0 noAPISIS
ssed G'6 E| gzl 0 z L) 6 4 0w 0 0 Zl B)seys
ssed VL E 00} 4 Z oL 9 A4 00 0 0 0 Znip ejueg
ssed £01 E| 0’8 0 0 8 Zl d g'g ¢ i St BIE|D ElUEG
ssed 9/ E| 8¢ 0 0 € Ji d 8 0] 2 p ElBgieq glueg
ssid 9/ E| 8¢ ] 0 g 14 QJ oL )] 0 € 0TI UEG
ssed LL E| 0’2 0] 4 8 g | £l 8 0 A odsiqQ sing ueg
ssed gLl E| 21 o 0 gl 6¢ E| g ¢ 0 Ll uinbeor ueg
ssed 9’8 E| Gt ] 0 S e d g0 0 0 l caspuelq leg
ssed 96 E | 401 0 0 oL Ll E| L'¥e 0 9 59 ofisig ueg
e vl E| S'9l 0 0 6 9g d £LL1 L€ 9/l 6L OulpJeussg ueg
[led @onjep opein bay uoosep eidind pey obuei) opeley bay soiding pay obuelp Aunon

| ssed ubisag 16/ 16

lenuuy

ANOH #2

120Z-610Z SAeq uonn||od adnJed ybiy

L20Z-610Z sAeQ auozQ ybIH

eluloyed

62 of 67



RYAN BURNS / THURSDAY, APRIL 20 (@ 3:30 P.M.
/ ENVIRONMENT

Breathe a Sigh of Relief: Humboldt
County May Have the Cleanest Air
in the State, Report Finds

Young lungs breathing pristine Humboldt County air. | Photo: Stephanie McGeary.

#it#

')’

Rejoice, Humboldt. Step outside, breathe deep and shout “Hooray!” When you’re

done, go ahead and take a few more deep inhales, because unless you’re standing

near a vehicle tailpipe, a 4/20 party or the business end of a local farm animal, the
air you’re breathing might just be the cleanest in the entire state.

That’s according to the American Lung Association’s 2023 State of the Air report,
which issues letter grades to counties across the country based on two air quality
measurements: ozone and particle pollution.

Ozone pollution, the main ingredient in smog, can trigger a variety of health
problems, leading to coughing, difficulty breathing, inflamed airways and increased
frequency of asthma attacks.

Humboldt County is virtually smog-free.

With 49 out of California’s 58 counties providing data analyzed in the report,
Humboldt is one of just nine counties to receive an “A” grade, with 0.0 high ozone
days tallied over the time period covered. (The data from the report, collected in
2019, 2020 and 2021, was taken from the 10,000-plus air quality monitors in

the EPA’s Air Quality System. Not all counties have monitors for either ozone or
particle pollution.)

As for particle pollution, Humboldt County received a B grade, which may sound
sorta “meh” until you learn that it was the highest grade in class. Yolo County got a

63 of 67



C; Imperial, Lake and Ventura counties all got Ds; every other county on the report
received a failing grade.

While Humboldt County experienced a bit of air pollution in recent years as smoke
from inland wildfires drifted our way, most days here are pristine. In contrast, the
vast majority of Californians live in communities with unhealthy levels of smog or
fine particles.

That may surprise you, but the truth is that much of California’s air is very, very
bad. As CNN notes, the Golden State accounts for six of the 10 worst cities in the
country in terms of annual particle pollution. California also has four of the five
worst cities for ozone pollution: Los Angeles-Long Beach, Visalia, Bakersfield and
Fresno-Madera-Hanford.

Nationwide, nearly 36 percent of Americans — 119.6 million people — live in
communities with failing grades for unhealthy levels of ozone or particle pollution,
according to the American Lung Association. That’s actually 17.6

million fewer people breathing unhealthy air than in last year’s report.

The authors attribute the country’s falling levels of ozone pollution to the success
of the Clean Air Act. Since President Richard Nixon signed that act into law in 1970,
emissions of outdoor air pollutants have fallen 78 percent, according to the EPA.

“However,” the State of the Air report says, “the number of people living in counties
with failing grades for daily spikes in deadly particle pollution was 63.7 million, the
most ever reported under the current national standard.”

People of color and those in western states are disproportionately affected, the
report found. Of the nearly 120 million people living in areas with unhealthy air
quality, more than 64 million (54 percent) are people of color.

What’s causing all this pollution? Driving is the big one. Transportation, including
fuel production and the engined of our gas-powered vehicles, is responsible for
roughly half of greenhouse gas emissions and 80 percent of air pollutants in
California, according to the California Air Resources Board.

Another factor? Wildfires, which lead to more ozone and particle pollution.
Nationwide there were 14,407 fires in 2021 alone, according to the National
Interagency Fire Center. “Those fires are why the regions with the highest
concentrations of air pollution are largely in the West,” CNN says.

64 of 67



As noted by the Los Angeles Times, California is taking action. “Following a 2020
order from Gov. Gavin Newsom, the California Air Resources Board developed a
plan to ban sales of new gas-powered vehicles by 2035,” the paper says in a story
published earlier today. “Similar state restrictions on diesel-burning big rigs were
also recently given the green light by federal regulators.”

How do we improve matters further? The report includes a list of suggestions for
both individuals and governments. For people they recommend that you prioritize
walking, biking and public transit for your transportation. Also, conserve electricity,
purchase your power from clean sources and refrain from burning leaves, trash and
wood whenever possible.

For local governments, the researchers recommend that jurisdictions adopt a
climate action plan. (Humboldt County supervisors are working to adopt one.) They
also suggest buying zero-emission fleet vehicles and set purchasing goals for
renewable, non-combustion energy.

Of course, most residential customers in the county already get their electricity
through Redwood Coast Energy Authority, which has a goal of purchasing 100
percent renewable power by 2030. And before long we could have massive floating
wind turbines generating power off our coast.

Click the following links if you’d like to read the full 2023 State of the Air report or
peruse California’s report card.

65 of 67



Agenda Item: 10
Board Member Reports



Agenda ltem: 11
Adjournment





